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Introduction

1. The pregent report is submitted pursuant to Economic and Social Council
resgolution 1988/38 entitled "Summary or arbitrary executions". This is the
seventh report of the Special Rapporteur to the Commission on Human Rights on
the subiesct,

2, Yn hiz six previous teports {E/AN. 471983716 and Add,.]1, B/ON.4/1984/29,
E/CR. 471985717, EACN.4/1986/°21, BACH . 4/1%87/20 and B/ON_4/19%88/22 and A4d4.1
and 1), the Special Rapportaur has Jdealt with and examined the various aspects
af tha phenomenon of summary executlons, including legal and other theoretical
isgues. Ha considers that all the khasic elements of the phenomenon have bean
discuszed in earlier raportz and that 2 sufficiently clear and camprehensive
picture has been presented,

3. Tha prasant report follows the general structure of the last report,
except that urgent appeals to Governments are described in chapter IT B of the
present report together with other cosmunications fopwarding allegarions ko
the Governments concerned and replies and observations therefrom. The Special
Rapporteur believes that this, together with a more detailed description of
alleged situations and casgesz, will presant a more comprehensiva picture of the
gitpation in sach country.

4, In chapter III, the Special Rapparteutr describes two issuas which are
being dealt with or are expected to be addresszed in the near future, The two
issues are: (a) recent developments with regard to establishing international
gtandards on remedial and/or preventive measures for the protection of the
cight to life; and (b)) co-ardination and co-operation of various mechanisms
and organs televant to the marndate of the Special Rapporteur, which the
Special Rapporteur considers of wital importance in snhancing the effective
implenmentation of his mandate.

5. Finally, in chapter IV, the Special Rappocteur giveaz conelusions and
recommendations, which are based on his analy=zls of the information he has
recaived and consideration of practical measurez to be taken in the immediate
future.,
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I. ACTIVITIES OF THE SPECIAL RAFFORTEUR

A. Consultations

6. The Special Rapporteur visited the Centre for Human Righte,
United Nations Office at Geneva, In July and October/Hovember 1988 for
consultations with the Secretariat and agaln in Jannary 19389 to finalize his
raport.

B. Communications

1. Information received

7. In the course of his present mandate, the Special Rapporteur received
communicationz containing information conrerning summary or ackiktrary
executions from Governments, non—governmental osrganizations and individuals,

a. Information of a general nature, in reply to the Special Rapporteur's
request on 30 Septenber 1927, waa received from the Governments of Barbados
amd Veneguela.

9, Information of a general nature andfor concerning specific allegationz of
sumiary of arbitrary eXecutions were regeived from the fallowing
mon—governnental organizations in consultative status with tha Bconomic and
Social Counecil: Afre«Azian People's Sclidarity Organization, Amnesty
International, Andean Commission of Juristsa, International Association of
Dexidcratic Lawyers, International Commigsion of Jurists, International
Confedaration of Free Trade Unions, International Federatiom of Human Rights,
Inter—-Parliamentary Union, Regional ffouncil on Human Rights in Asia,

10. In addition, information concerning alleged cases of summary or arbitrary
executions was received from a numbsar of reqional, national and local non-
governmental arganizations, groups and individuala in various parts of the
world.

2. Allegations of summary or arbitrary executions

11. 1In the course of his mandate, the Special Rapporteor sent cables and
letters to Governments concerning allegations of lmminent or actual summary or
arbitrary exacutions in thair conntries,

{a) DUrgent appeals

12. In response to information containing allegations of isminent or
threatenad summary or arbikrary executions which appeared prima facie relevant
to his mandate, the Special Rapporteur addressed urgent messages by cable to
2} Governments, appesling, on purely homanitarian grounds, for the
Government's protection of the right to 1ife of the individwals concerned and
requesting information concerning those allegations, These Governments are:
Algeria, Angola, Bangladesh, Bulgaria, Burundi, China, Colombia, El Salvador,
Equatorial Guinea, Guatemala, Haiti, Indonesia, Iran (Islanmlis Republic of),
Irag, Jamajica, Jordan, Mavritania, Peru, Somalia, South Africa, Suvriname,
United States of Awmerica, Vist Ham.
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13. Replies wers pacelved from the following Govermmenks: Algeria,
Bangladesh, Burundi, China, Iraq, Jordan, United States of Amerisca, Viet HWan.,

14, Thess messages amd the replies received are summarized in chaptec II, the
full texts are ayvailable for consultation in the Secretariat files.

{b} Raguests for information concerning zllegerd summary or _arbitracy
executions

15. The Special Rapportaur also zent letters te 36 Governments coneeening
alleged symmnary or arbitrary executions in their countries as follows:
Bangladesh, Benin, Brazil, Burma, Chad, China, Colombia, Czechoslovakia,
Democtatic Yeman, El Salvador, EBthiopla, Guatemala, Haiti, Honduras, India,
Indonesia, Iran {Islamic Republic of), Iragq, Israel, Maaritania, Nepal,
Nicaragua, Higeria, Pakistan, Peru, Philippinesz, Scomalia, South Africa,

Sri Lanka, Swdan, Svrian Acak Republie, Thailand, Uganda, United Fingdom of
Great Britain and Horkthern Ireland, Yemen, Zaire.

16, Replies wers received from the follewlng Governments: Bangladesh, Benin,
Brazil, Burma, Colombia, Cz2echoslovakia, Honduras, India, Indonesia, Iraq,
Higeria, Fhilippines, Sri Lanka, Syrian Arab Republic, tUnited Kingdom of Great
Britain and Marthern Ireland.

17. 1In addition, replies were received from the following five Governments
concerning the allegations transmitted by the Special Rapporteur during 1987z
Bl Salvador, India, Mexico, Hicaragua, Syrian Arab Republic.

18. Furthecrmorte, in the course of his present mandate, the Special Rapporteur
mat the representatives of the following Governments in connectlon with
alleged summary or arbitrary executions in their countcies: Algeria, Benin,
Burma, China, India, Indonesla, Ivag, Wigeria, Sri Lanka.

19. The Special Rapporteur would like to express hls utmost appreciation for
their positive co—operation with him. He valoes these consultations apd would
like to have more of them with more countries in the future, as they help him
to be batter informed and thereby to make a more comprebensive report to the
Commizzion.

20. The alleged summary or arbitrary executions transmitted to Governments
and the replisz thereto are summarized in chapter II. The £full texts are
avalilable for consultation in the Secretariat files.

¢, Joinkt hearingz on aoukthern Africa

21, The Special Rapporteur jalned the Ad Hoc Working Group of Experts on
southern Africa for hearings on southern Bfrica at the Workimg Group's 714th
to 73lst meetings held in Harare, Lusaka, and Dar 2 Salaam, United Republic
of Tanzania, from 3 to 17 Angust 19BB, The information obtained at the joint
hearings is raflsctead in chapkar II, zection B, {paragraphs 236-24B),
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IT. SITUATICHS
A, General

22, The information received hy the Special Rapporteur in the eourse of his
present mandate includes allegarions of exscutions or deaths which may have
taken place in the absence of the safequards designed to protect the right to
life embodied in various interpational instruments, such as the International
Covenant on Civil and Politica) rRights (arts. 4, &, 7, 9, 14 and 15), the
standard Minimum Rules for the Treatment of Prisoners, the Code of Conduct for
Law Enforcement Officials, the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel,
Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment, and the Safeguards guaranteeing
protection of the rights of those Facing the death penalty adopted by the
Economic and Soclal Ccuncil in resclation 1984/50.

23. This information generally related to allegations of the following nature:
{a) Actual or {mminent exsontions:
(i} Without a trial,;
(i1} wWith a trial but without safeguards designed to protect the
rights of the defendant as provided for in articles 14 and 15
of the Internatjsnal Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

{b} Deaths which tock place:

(i) As a result Of gorture or cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment
during detentin;

{ii} As a result of abuse of force by police, military or any other
governmental or guasi-govecrnmental forces;

(iii) &g a result of szsault by individuals or paramilitary groups
under official control:

{iv) &s a result of agsault by grocups opposing the Government or not
under its control,

B, Country situations

Algeria

24. On 13 October 19898, a ¢able was sent to the Government of Algeria
concerning the widespread untragt throughout the country at the begimming of
October 1998 in which a large pumber of persons allegedly died as a result of
confrontations betwaan civiliﬂng and securit? forces,

25. The Special Rapporteur Abmpealed to the Government to take avery neceasary
measure in order to protedk bthe right to life of individuals and requested
information on the above-mentjoned situation, and in particular the measures
taken by the Government to Plavent further loss of life,
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26, On 2 Wovembaer 1983, the Speclal Rapporteur met the Perwmanent
Representative of Algeria to the United Hations Office at Geneva in connection

with the above-mentioned situation.

27. On l4 December 1%88, a reply was received from the Goveroment of Algeria,
stating that nc summary or arbitrary axecutions had ocourred during the
incidents in guestion. It was also stated that the Government deplored the
death of 15% pearsons during the unrest among whom were demonstrators as well
as members of the security forces. According to the reply, the Govaernment was
responsible under the Constitutlon for the maintenance of public order and the
protaction of parsons and their propecty and therefore had proclaimed a state
of siege on 5 Qctober 1988 which was 1ifted on 12 October 1988, when the
situaticn returned to nocmal, It waa further stated that, undar the
instructions of the President of Algeria, the Council of Ministers had adepted
a seriez of measur=:s at itz meeting on & December 138B in favour OfF the
daceassd and those wounded duecing the incidents and that it had alao taken
decigions concerning those arrested.

Angola

28, On 15 Hovember 1988, a cable waa gant to the Government of Angola
concerning two alleged casea of imminent execution. 2According to information
received, two peraons named Marcolino Fazenda and Joaguim Antonio were
sentenced to death on 24 October 1988 by the Luanda Garrison Militacy
Tribonal, follewing their zonvietion for morder apnd cobbery. In this
connpection it was alleged that, £ince the beginning of 1984, five persons had
been zentenced to death, without the right to appeal to a hiqher tribunal
againat the death #entences.

29. The Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government to look into the
above-mantloned cases and requested information on them, in particular
tegarding the proceedings of the Trilunal, aa a result of which the two
pecsons had reportedly been sentenced to death.

30. At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had besen
recaeived From the Govarnment of Angola.

Bangladesh

31. On 10 May 193E, a cable waz sent to the Governmant of Bangladesh
concerning an alleged cage of imminent execution. According to information
recaived, a mon namwd Mohiuddin was allegedly sentenced to death on

3 Hovembar 1985 by Special Military Court No. B in Jassore. It was allegad
that at that time tha defendant waz not granted the right to appeal againet
the verdiot and sentence of the Spacial Military Court. Furthermore,
Mohiwddin's petition for mercy was Eaid to have been rejected by the
Pragident.

12, The Special Rapporteur requested information on the case, in particular
on the procedures of the Special Millitary Court.

33. On % Bovenber 192B, a letter was sant concerning an allegqgad camre of death
In detention. According to information received, on 5 Wavember 1987, a person
named Abu Saved Moksedol Hug Rinto, a gtudent from Hotwali: in Barizal, 2died as
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2 resylt of beatings while in detention at Barisal gaol., It was alleged that
the post-mortem, ordered by the Depuky Commissioner of Barisal, found that
Einte had died due to head injorles and that his hody carried matcks of
beatings. Ho investigation was known to have been carried out so far on the
Cafe.,

34. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the above-mentioned case,
and in partlecular, on any investigation carried out into the case, including
an autopsy, and any measures taken by the authorities ko hring those
responaible to juatice and prevent further ocgurrence of such deaths.

15, On 7 July 1984, a reply wAS receiged troam the Govermmant af Banqlardesh kn
the cable of 30 May 19368, stating that on 26 May 1993 the Preaident had
commutsed the death sentence imposed on Mohioddin to life imprisonment.

36, On 16 December 1968, a reply was received from the Governmant of
Bangladesh to the letter of 9 November 1988, stating that a judieial
investigation was carried out into the death of A.S., Moksedul Huq Rinto in
Barisal gaol, that subsequently the chief and apother gacl guard were charged
with havitg contravened certain sections of the Bangladesh Penal Code
concerning the treatment of prizoners and that the cases wers currantly being
trisd hy the session jndge of Barisal.

Benin

37. On % November 198E, a letter was sent to the Government of Benin
concarhing an alleged case of death In detention., According to information
received, a person named Remy Glele Rkpokpo, died in custody on

18 Januwary 1988 as a result of torture in the Central Police Station
{Conmissariat central) in abomey. Ho Iinvestigation or inquest was said to
have baen carried out concerning his death.

18, The Special Rapporteur cequasted information on the above-mentioned case
arnd in particular on any investigation of the caze, including an autopsy, and
any measuras taken by the authorities to prevent further occurrence of such
daaths, .

3%. On 23 December 1%8B, a reply was received from the Government of Benin,
stating that there were no political detaimees or prisoners of consclence in
Benin, It was stated that, during the periods of grave tension in the
country, certain peopls who had decided to carry out activities with & visw to
sar iougly disturbing the social order had been summoned and placed under
administrative detention for questioning to clarify their invelvement in
activities which wonld endanger the social peace and stability of democratic
institutions. In order that those convictead of such activities pould assume
full rasponsibility in accordance «ith the law, measures ware taken by the
competent organs. It was further stated that, in order to deal with the
abugive practice of deprivation of liberty in garrisons by certain ocfficera,
the Head of State had reiterated relevant provigions of the Fundamental Law
which enbodjed the principlas of habeas corpus as well as Act Mo, E1-004 of

23 March 1981 and that he had again forbidden the practice of excessive
detention without charqge. According to the reply, the Pecple's Central
Prosecutor's Office (parquet pPopulaire central} had a mandate to ensure the
legality of detention, to visiting places of detention regularly and supervise
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the adminiztration of deatention. It wasz aleo stated that wvarious activities
were organized to inform and aducate administrative bodies and the people in
general with regard to homan righte, in ordar to protact citizens against
arbitrary action, With regard to conditions of detention, it was stated that
ragnlar vizitz by the People's Prosecutor's Office ensured respect for human
dignity and contriboted to the rehabilitation of cffenders in their social
Life.

40, On 132 Jansary 1989, thae Special Rapporteur mek the Parmanant
Representative of Benin to the Unjted Nations Gffice at Geneva, With regard
ko the case of Glele Akpokpo, the Parmament Reprasentative stated that he had
urged his Government to carcy out an inguiry into the ease. According to the
Parmanent Representative, i€ the person in question had been found dead, a
Judicial investigation would have been held regarding the circuomstancesz of his
death and the result of the investigation would be communicated to the Special
Rapporteur.

41. In addition, the Permanent Representative brlefed the Special Rapporteur
with regard to the recent developments in Banip concerning human rights,
including the establisiment of various natlonal lnstiturions under the new
Constitution of 1976, guch a2 the People's Tribuhals and Paople's Prosecutor's
Office, the appointment of Judges, the creation of the national sectlon of the
Association of African Jurists, the organization of natlonal seminars on human
rights and khe recent reinstatement of privately owned newspapars.

Brazil

42. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Brazil concerning
the following allegaticons.

43, During the past Several years, hundreds of paersoms, said to be ¢riminal
sugpectrs, have been killed in varicus parts of the pcountcy by sc—-called
"vigilants groups” whose members allagedly included curcent and former palice
ocfficars. In spite of afforts made at variocus lavela of the Government to
suppress this vhenomenon, killings continued to be reported. In Rio de
Janeiro alone, 47 persong were reporked to have been killed by viglilante
groupg in one week at the end of September 1937.

44. On 29 December 1967, in Pard 3State, at lsast eight unarmed porsons died
when Pard State military police opened fire while clearing gold-miners and
their famllies wha had been blockading a bridge at Marabsa, In addition to the
aight confirmed deaths, 66 persons ware said to he still missing, prezumed
dead. Later, one witnass, who had raported on television on 30 Degcempber 1387
that he had seen elght corpses below the bridge, wags allegadly beaten to death
by a group of unidentified men.

45, On 28 March 1388, in the vicinity of the 53b Ieopoldo Indlan area,
District of Benjamim Constant, 3tate of Amazonaszs, four Ticuna Indlans were
allegedly killed in an attack by the employees of a timber company aperating
in the area. Despite the Fact that the incident was seep by pumercus
eve-wltnesses those lnvolved in the killings were allegedly released from
police custody.
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46, On % Hovember 198, another letter was sent tranamitting information
alleging that, during the past sevetal years, a number of persons, mainly
peasant smallhclders (“posseiros") but also brade-unionists, priests and
lawyers working with posgant communities, were killed by personsg hired for the
purpose. In a nember of caszes of such killings the police personnel were
allaged ko have been directly involved. It was further allieqed that the
authoritias had failed to take effective action to investigate the killings,
to bring those responsible to justice or to protect those whose lives were
threatenad.

47. The Special Rapporteur described, by way of examplz, 13 such incidents
which had allegedly occurred since 1987 in the States of Para, Goias,
Pernambuco, Minas Gerals, Espirito Santo, Bahia and Acte.

48. The Special Rapporteur reguested information on the alleged occunrrence of
summary and arbitrary executions and in particular on any investigatione of
those cases, including autopeies, and any measure taken by the anthoriries ro
bring those responsible to justice and prevent further cocurrence of such
death=.

49_. On 22 September 1988, a reply was raceived from the Government of Brazil
k¢ the latter of 28 July 1988, stating that the so-called "vwigilante groups"
ware "axtermination®™ groups =et up by highly dangerous outlaws of the
organized crime underground, and that the Government was taking the necessary
megsures to suppres: such groups, for example in the State of =52 Paule, where
a highly specialized corps was being trained and deployed to deal with the
problem, With regard ko the incident of 29 December 1987 in Pard State, ik
was said that the Commission appointed by the Council for the Defence of Human
Rights [CDDPH) of the Ministry <f Justice to investiqate the incident had
recommended in its report anm inguiry by the Department of Federal Police.

With regard to the alleged killing of four Ticuna Indians in the Btate of
Amazonas, it was stated that on 10 March 1988 the Department of Federal Police
had bhequn ites itvestigation of khe killings amd that the Hational Foupdakion
for Aszistance to Indigenous Populations (FUNAI) had rcequested the Department
of Federal Police to detain those suspected of the murders, had followed the
progress of the investigation in Benjamin Constant and reguested the Ministry
Of Welfare to extend pensicn banafite to the widows of the wvictims.

50. On 21 December 1988, a reply to the Special Rapporteur's letker

of 9 November 1985 was received from the Government, stating that rhe
aliegations were under consideration by the competent anthorities, The reply
stated further that the Sovernmant congidered as sumwary or arbltrary
executions only those cases jn which Government afficials were actually
involved.

Bulgaria

51, ©Onn 11 May 1988, a cable was sent o the Government of Bulgaria concerning
three alleged cases of imminent execution. According to information received,
rhree persons named Elin Madzharov, Adtsek Chakarov and Sava Georgiev were
allegedly sentenced to death on 25 April 1938 by the Supreme Court of
Bulgaria. It was alleged that there was no cight of appeal to a higher
tribunal. The Special Rapporteur, Gtating that, in casas of capital
puntahmant, he was concerned with any allegation of abeence of the =afaguards
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intended to ensure the basic rights of the imdividual, including the right to
appeal, requested information in particular on the legal provisions and
proceduras under which the zbove-mentioned persons were sentenced to death.

52, At the time of preparation of the present report no raply had been
received from the Government of Bulgaria.

Burma

53. Om 28 July 1988&, & letter was sent ¢ the Government of Burma
tranemitting the allegation that during 1986 and 1987 a large number of
unarmed civilians, said to be members of the Karen ethnle minority, had been
killed by the Burmese army durilng its counter=insurgency cpercations in Earen
S5tate. It was alleged that the victims, who were suspected of links with
oppasition groups, had disobeyed travel or rationing restrictions, or had been
selzed by the army to work az porters or guides were allegedly killed by

them. In hls letter the Special Rapporteur stated that he had received a list
of 60 such victims.

54. On % November 1988, another letter was zent cochoerning the alleged
killing by Government forces of civilians belonging to the Shan ethnle
minority during the past several years in Shan State. It was alleged that the
victims, wither suspected of links with opposition groups or selzed by the
army to work as porters, bhad been shot, stabbed or beaten to death, The
Special Rapporteur described, by way of example, eight alleged incidents of
such killings since the beginning of 1967.

55. Furthermore, the Speclal Rapporteur transmitted by the same letter
information alleging that, during the uncest in Rangoon apd cthey cities gince
June 1988, a large number of personsg had been shot dead by governmenk troops
during demonstrations or had died in detention az a result of torture and
ill=treatment.

6. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the alleged occurrence of
sommary and arbitrary executions and in particular on any Investigations of
_those cases, including autopsie=, and any measuras taken by the authoritles to
bring those responsible tc justice and prevent further occurrence of such
deaths.

57. on 4 Dctober 1988, a reply was received from the Government of Burma to
the Special Rapportear®s letter of 28 July 1988, statirng that, according to
the authorities concerned, including those in the remcte frontler areas, ho
cases of summary and arbitrary executions had taken place in the military
operations in the years 1986 and 1987,

58. On 2% Decembsr 1988 another reply was ceceived stating that, with regard
to the allegations transmitted in the Special Rapporteur's letter of

28 July 1968, the Burmese authorities had found it Aifficult to establish the
facts, gince relevankt particulars, such as names of victim= and exact
locations of alleged sxecutions, were not specified. However, it was alsc
stated that general and comprehensive inquiries, carried out in the command
areas where counter-insurgency operations took place during 1336 and 1387,
irdicated that oo summacy or acbitracy executions had oCcurred in those areas
as alleged, It was further stated that thete were no recoids of official
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complaints lodged by the familiea of the alleged victime with the local
authorities concerned. With regard ko the allegationa transmitted by the
Special Rapporieur's lettexr of 9 Hovember 19E8, inquiries and investigations,
carrled cut with the regiments and infantry divislons concerned, revealed that
the alleged summary or arbitrary executions hag not taken place,

55, Concerning the demonstrations in Rangoon and elsewhere in the country
gince June 1968, it was stated that the security auvtheritiex, in the process
of restoring law and order, had acted with the utoost self-restraint and had
rasorted to sheoeting only when public and private property and the life of
citizens were in jecpardy. It was alsg staked that, in the genaral confusion
caused by certain unscrupulous polikticsl alements which had reached its peak
between 9 and 16 August 1988, action taken by the security forces had resulted
in 192 deaths and 570 injured nation-wide, including the death of

four scldiers and 19 mambers @f the police force. Itk was further stated that
since 1% September 1988 when the national defence authorities had been forced
to intervene to assume State responsibilities, the security forces had taken
action to prevent vandalism and looting and te quell the genaral violence.
According to the reply, this had resulted in the death of 516 and the injury
of 272 looters country-wide and the death of 15 and the injury of 21 other
persons in the confusion of the violent demonatrations. With regard to the
arrest and detention of thoge balieved to have baen invelved in the
disturhances, it wa= saié¢ that the State Law and Order Restoration Council had
enacted a new law ansuring due peocesa of law with proceedings in open court,
unless otherwise provided for by law, the right of the detainee to defence and
the right to appeal.

60. On 11 January 1989, the Special Rapporteur met the Parmanent
Reprezentative of Burma to the United Wations Qffice ak Geneva, who briefed
him on a nunber of positive developments which it was hoped would remedy soma
of the conditions which had given rise to a gituation in which logss of life
had taken place. Among the points mentioned were:

{a) More than one political party may be registered and parmitted to
operate and participate in elections but they must be committed ko the Erue
democratic system. Currently there are more than 167 political parties which
have been registered with the Multi-Party Democracy General Elections
Commission;

{b) The Multi-Party Democracy General Elections Commission has been sat
up to prepars the cuccessful holding of free and fair multi-pacty democracy
general elections:

{c] The parsons who have been appointed to the said Commission have been
accapted by all the parties in Burma as persons of integrity, impartiality and

good repute;

{@) The groups of youths, students and monks who have been repatriated
from Thailand have haen accorded individual attantion to ensurs that each of
them hag returned safely to their parepts, Up to 5 January 1989,

1,929 students had returned home.

1. On khe same day additional information was received from the Government
of Burma, Stating that the recent rumours that stwdents who bhad returned from
the border areas had been arrested and killed were totally false.
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Burundi

62. On 26 August 1988, a cable was sent to the Government of Burundi
concerning alleged deaths as a result of a kribal conflict. According te
information receiwved, thousands of people had been killed since mid-August
1988 during a tribal conflict which had broken out In the nocth of the
country. Further information received alleged that the intervention of the
arny had resulted in even nore victims.

63. The Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government to take all necessary
measures to ensure that the right to life of evary citizen was fully protected
and reguasted information on the above-mentioned situwation, and in particulac
on the steps taken by the Gowernment to prevent further loss of life.

64. On 3L Rogusk 1988, a note verbale was received from the Goverament of
Burundi concecning the situation in the c¢ommunes of Htega and Marangara and
the nature of the operations carried ont by the army. According to the note
verbals, on 15 August 1988, ane week after tension had been increased by
elementz whe had infiltrated the local population and misled them to believe
that an attack by the other efhnic population was imminent, a group of rebels
armed wirh epears, machetes, ¢lubs and stones had attacked amd killed the
inhabltants of Mtega and proceeded to the commune of Marangara with similar
intentions. It was also stated that, when the Govarnmant troops had arcived
at Htega on 16 hugust 1988, thousands of people had azlready disd oc
disappeared and hundreds of houses had been bucrned down., It was further
stated kthat the government tcoops had intervened ln order to stop the carnage,
but that a humber of persons rot lnvolwved in the killings might have been hit
by stray bullets fired by kthe government kbroops. BAccording to the note
verbale, in such a situation the security forces had no alternative but to use
thelr arms, not against innocent civilians, but againat the rebszla who were
engaged in killing, raping and arsen, It was stated that the victims incleded
people from all ethnic backgrounds.

Chad

65. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Chad concerning
the allegation that several perscns had died in secret detention centres as a
resnlt of ill=treatment. The caugaes of deakh were alleged to have included
lack of medical treatment, extremely poor diet, lack of water and lack of
ventilation in overcrowded cells, ih addition to beatings and other physical
ill-treatment. COne of the prisoners, named Guilou Hassane, allegedly died on
18 Hovember 1987 in a secret d2tention Ccentre in W'DHjamena. Tt was further
alleged that no investigation or ihquest ints these deaths had been carried
out.

£6. The Special Rapporteur reduested information on the above-mentioned
allagation and, in particular on any investigation of the case, including an
autopsy, and any measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsible
to justice and prevent further occurcence of such deaths.

£7. At the time of preparation ¢f the present report, no reply had been
received from the Government.
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Chipna

£8, On 14 June 1988, a cable waz sent to the Government of China concerning
the alleged imminent exegution of four persona named Lobsang Tenzln, Teecing
Dhonduop, Gyaltzen Chophel and Sonam Wangda, who were allegedly involved in the
kliting of a Chineze policeman during the demponstration on 5 Macch 1988 in
Lhagsa, Tibet Antonomous Region. Since the official announcement aof their
arrest allegadly refarced to them ag the "four principal criminals®, fears were
expregied to the Spacial Rapportear that the four might not have heen granted

a fair and open trial amd that they might be executed shortly after the trial.

69, The Spacial Rapporteur, being concerned, in cases of capital punishment,
with any allagation of absence of the safequards intended to ensure the basic
rights of the dafendant as provided for in article 14 of the International
Covenant on Civil and Political Rightz, requested informatioh on the
above-mentioned cases, in particular on the legal proviszions and progedures
under which the four might have been charged and tried.

70. On 12 December 1988, anokther cahle was Bent concerning alleged cases of
killing of demonstrators in the Tibet Autonomous Regicn. According to
information received, on 10 December 1988 at least two persons, a Boddhist monk
and a nun, were allegedly shot dead in Lhasa when the security forces fired at
a crowd of demonztrators at close range without warning, Exprecsions of
concern were racelved by the Special Rapportaur that further deaths might occour
in similar confrontations hetween the security forces and the local population.

TL. The Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government to take all necessary
measures to 2nsure protectien of the right to life of the individual and
requested information on the above-mentioned incident.

72. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of China concerning
allegations that, in the sitoation of sathnic unreat in the Tibet Autconomous
Region, notably since September 1987, several d«aths mostly of Tihetana, had
allegedly oocorred, incloeding cases of shooting and bheating to death of
dememstratorse by the Chinese police forces and execution of detainees after
terkture in prison. Sewveral sach alleged cases bronght to khe attenktion of the
Special Rapporteur were described as follows:

{a] On 3 October 1987, two monks from Sara Monastery wetre shot dead when
they tried ta prevent the pelice from entering the monastery)

(b} During 1987, in Drabehi prison a number of persons were executad
without trial after having been tartured:;

() On 4 November 1987, Lebsang Wangchuk, aged 74, died shortly after
hig releasze Erom detention due to repeated torture and malereatment during his
impriscament. Howewer, according to an official accoont he diad of liver
Ccancary

{fd) On 5 March 1928, during trhe demopstration in and arourd the Jokhang
Tawple in Lhasa fevaral persons, incluoding monks and lay Tibetans, wers shat
or beaten £ death by the police forces;

{2} BAecording to an official account, a Chinese policeman was killed by
demanstrators during the above-mentionad demonztration.
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73. ©On % November 1988, another letter was sent ko the Government of China
concartiing the allegation that, in the Tibet Autonomous Region, sevaral deaths
were alleged te have occurred as a result of assault by police or prison

of ficers. Two examples of such alleged cacses were described as followss

{a} On 1] May 1988, a Rhampa from Xanze died in a Lhasa hospital as a
result of savere beatings in Gutsa Prisong

{b) ©On 12 June 1988, in Lhasza, Tzangps, aged 35, disd ag a result of
gsevere beakings after he had been arrested, togethaer with two other men, by
the Lhasa Tengton Chue branch security police.

74. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the above-mentioned
cases, and in particular on any investigation of the cases and any measures
taken by the autheorities and/or the judiciary to establish the facts and bring
those responsible to justice.

75. ©Om 21 July 1988, the Special Rapportsur met the Parmarent Representative
of China to the thhited Wationa Office at Geneva and received a reply from the
Government t& his cable of 10 June 1988. The reply stated that the ricks
which had o¢curred in Lhasa since Septembar 1987 were the work of a handful of
Tibetan ceparatiats encouraged by the Dalal Lama, and that the fncident of

5 March L9488 waz a case in point. It was Further stated that, in order to
gafequard national security and maintain social order, the local Tibetan
authorities had been Forced to take ackion to arrest the corganizers of the
ricts as well asz those participantd whe had ocommivreed serious crimes,
including those wio had killed a police offiger. This agtion, according to
the reply, was fully justified and Chinage Jjudicial organs would bring the
criminals to trlal strictly in keeping with the legal procaduras and mete gut
due punishment to them in accardance with the law., With regard to the
judicial procedure ¢oncerning the death penalty, the reply referred to the
Government's communication of 13 January 1998 to the Special Rapporteur which
was described in his laat report to the Commisaion on Human Rights
(E/CH.4/19088/22, paras. 79-30).

T8, Om 2% November 1988, a reply was2 received from the Government of China to
the Special Rapporteor's cable of 12 December 1%38. BAceording to the reply,
on the morning of 10 Decembar 1988, leaflets advocating the indapendence of
Tibat had been found in the streets apnd later about 30 lamas and nuns had
gathered at the Ramoge Temple and headed the Jokhang Tempie square in Bargor
Strect, On the way, a few cther peocple had joined in and some of them had
unfolded and waved the sc—called "national flag of the independent State of
Tibet"., Tt was said that, as the crowd grew unruly, polfcemen on doty Eried
to porsuade the marchars to stop making trouble, but the latter had refused.
Thay had evan thrown stones and bottleg at the policemen. It was alsc stated
that after rapeated unsuccessfal admonltions, the policemen were forced to
fire warning shots, that, in the ansuing chaos, one lama, not two persons as
alleged, was killed and 13 injured, all of whom, sxcept two, had zuffered only
minor injuries and that they had recejived timely treatment. It was further
stated that, since then, public ordar in Lhasa had returped to normal and no
*confrontation® of the kind mentioned by the Special Rapporteur had occurred.
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Colaombia

T?. On 28 October 19B8B, a cable was sent to the Goveroment of Colombia
goncerning alleged death threats to Angela Toban Poertas, leader of the
teachers" union of the Department of Antioguia {ADIDA).

78. Om 1B Hovember 1962, ansther cable was sent concerning alleged death
threats to Fr. Jorge Eduardo Serranc Orddfiez, a parish priest of San FPio X,
Cuenta, Department of Norte de Santrander, made by a paramilitary group calling
itgalf "Muerte 3 revoluciocnarios®™ (MRR).

79. In both cables. the Special Rapportecr expressed hils concern for the life
of tha persons nam2d and reguested information on Ehe measures taken ta
protact them,

0. On 28 July 1988, a lettar was =zant ko bhe Government of Colombia
concerning the allegation that during the past year more than 1,000 perscns
had besn killad by membars of the security forces and by paramilitary grouops.
Security forces units which wers alleged to be reaponsible for swch killings
inclwded tha police intelligence unit of the Natlonal Police, (F-2), the
army's Iintelligence division, {B-2), the army's intalligence and
countar—-intelligance battaiion {gg;allén de Inteligencia ¥ Contra-Inteligencia
{(BINCI}), and regular army battalions and regiona] brigades, Evidencs
alleqadly suggested that the paramilitary groups known as "death sguads®
incladsd police and military personnel and their civilian aoxiliaries. It was
alleged that, in many of the killings by the "death squads™, military weapons
and vehicles without number-plates were used and that those wehicles had heen
s2en DAar army premises or Police stations. It was further alleged that bokh
civil and military anthoritisas had f£ailed to bring those responsible ko
jugtice. Many of the victims were trade-onion leaders and activists, members
of political parties, farm Wworksars, human righbts activiste, lawyers, juodges
and jouarnalists. Lists of several hundred victims, including many members of
the Central Workers Union of Colombia {CUT) and of the Dnidn Patriotica (UP),
were received bw the Speclal Rapporteur, who described by way of esample

16 incidents of killings which had allegedly occurred during the period
between Rugust 1977 and May L98A.

Bl. On 9 November 1988, ancther letter wag senk to the Government of
Colombia, transmitting further allegations that, according to saveral zources,
between Januvary and August 19BE, some 400 persons, mostly peasants, were
allegedly killed in 46 incidents of "masgacres" of five or more persons. The
Special Rapporkeur, having received, sitce Aungust 1988, morsa than 150 names of
vigtims of such killings, alleged to have cccurred since the beginning of
1288, described by way of example 14 incidents which reportadly occurred
during the period ketween March and October 1988,

32, In both letters, the Special Rapportenr raquested information on the
above-mentioned allegations and in particular on any investigation of the
cases and any measures taken by the authorities andsor the judiciary to
eztablish the facts and brimg those responsihle to justice.

83. ILetters ware recelived from the Government of Colombxia on 25
and 2% August, 13 Octobar, 9 and 11 Hovember 1968 and 9 Janvary 1989,
tranemitting information on a number of cases as follows:
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{fa) With regard to the cases of Salvador Hinco Martinez,
Hevarda Fernindez, Carleos Paez Lizeane amd Luz Stella Vargas, who ware
allegedly killed on 22 October 1987 by members of the police in the
minicipality of Hobo, Department ©of Hoila, it was stated that inveatigations
wers in a preliminary stage;

ib) With regard to the case af the deaths of 21 peasants, members of the
Aaricultural Workers Union {SINTRGRI) on 4 March 1928 con the estates of
La Hegra and Bonduras in the municipality of Currulao, Department of
Antioguia, it was steted that the Administrative Security Department (DAS) had
conducted the preliminary inguiry ard the prosscution was being prepared by
the judge of the Second Court for Public Order. Two persons, a civilian and a
saldier, were stated to have been detalned and 10 arrest warcants had been
igaued ao far;

(e} With regard to the case of the killing of Alvars Garcds Parra,
Mayor of Sabana de Torres, Department of Santander on 16 August 1986, charges
were brought against two natiopal army officers on 1 July 1988 and the
eriminal invesztigation was being carried out by the Eleventh Courct of Criminal
Invesktigaticon, Bucaramanga. The proceedings were still in the pre-trial atage
and o one had yet been detained;

{d} With regard to the case of the killing of Héctor Julic Mejia, Judge
Ho. 13 of Medellin Court of Criminal Investigation was conducting the
preliminary investigation with a view to identifying the perpetrators of the
of fence)

(&) With regard to the case of Luis Antonio Bohdrguez, the Bucaramanga
Court of Criminal Investigation was conducting a criminal investigation into
the alleged disappearance of Bohdrguez;

{f) With regard to the case of Osvaldo Teheran, the investigation was at
the preliminary stage in the Fourth Public Order Court in Bogotd;

{g} With regard to the case of Juan Diego Arango Morales, Judge Ho, 49
of the Medellin Court of Criminal Investigation was investigating the case;

{h} With regard to the killing of Carlcos Maurd Boyosa, Piscal
General de la Wacidn {Attorney-Gen=ral of the Hation), and hi= two bodyguards,
the Second Specialized Court in Medellin was handling the pre-trisl stage of
proceedings. A detention order was issued for five persons implicated in the
abduction and murder of the Attorney-General; three of them were detalned and
summonaes and arrest warrants were issusd against three other persona)

(i) With regard to the death 9f Marco Antonio SAnchez Caztelldn
preliminary proceedings wers being held by the itiperant judge of the
Eighth Court of Oriminal Invaeatigation, and on 26 October 1908 the court
requested the logal DAS and criminal police officialse to apprehend two parsons
for the murder. No disciplinary progesdings had been initiated in the abzencs
of evidence of the responaibllity of the national police;

{3) With regard to the cases of Honduras Farm and La Negra Farm in
Tucko, Urabd, on 4 Match and that of Punta Coquitos in Turbo, Urabd,
Antiogula, on 11 April 1983, it was stated that, since they were connected, it
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had been declded by a court order of 25 June 1988 that there should be joint
proceedings. The proceedipngs were corrently with the Highar Public Order
Tribunal of Bogotd awaiting a declsion on the appeal lodged by the persons
under investigation, requesting cancellatlon of the detention arders and
dismissal of the cases. With regard to disciplinary proceedings, the Wational
Police Prosecutor degided to open & formal disgiplinary investligation of a
captain on 9 September 19%88;

{k} With regard to the case of La Mejor Esquina in Buenavista, Cordoba,
“on 3 April 1988, it was staked that the case was in the investigatory skage
and that several persons had been sentenced by the Public Order Court to

10 and & years' impriscnment. It was alsc stated that there was no evidence
of any participation in these events by State security forces., 1t was fucther
stated that a disciplinary investlgation was being carried out into posaible
irreqularities that the Pirst, Sixth and Tenth Criminal BExamining Magistrates
of Monteria might have committed in the trial concerning the Mejor Esguina
maszacre,; by releasing some of the persons charged;

{1} WwWith regard to the case of Llana Caliente, San Vicente de Chucuri,
Santander, on 2% May 1988, it was stated that the events had resulted from a
violent armed confrontation between the forces of order and demonstrators in a
peasant march. According ko the investigation, a person named
Luls tribe Suérez, allas Commandant Camilo, who had been annestied and was
cellabocrating with the army as an informant, was with the soldiers when the
action occcprred and he fired at and killed four army officers and soldlers.
Hine civilians al=c lost their lives, It was stated that the investigation
was almast completed;

{m} WwWith reqard to the case of La Fortuna, Bacrancabermejz, Santander,
on 23 May 1%8B8, it was stated that despite numercus statements and items of
evidence gollected in the case, it had not been possible to identify the
individual perpetrators of or participants in the punishable offences;

(n] With regard to the case of San Rafael in Antioguia, on 24 June 1988,
it wag stated that the case was atill at the investigatory stage, It was also
atated that a captain had been arcested and remanded in custody and that the
accused had filed an appeal against the security measuce)

(2] With regard to the death of Humberto Santana Towvar in Rivera, Huila,
on 26 June 1988, it was stated that the case was still at the investigatory
stage, the pecpetrators of the crime being unidentified to date;

(p)} With regard to the death of Luis Anguste Bonilla in Cumaral, Mets,
on 3 August 19488, it was stated that the investigation had not heen completed;

() With regard to the case of Explanacidn Settlement, Yarima, El Carmen,
Bantander, on 20 July 1988, it was stated that the proceedings were still at
the investigatory stage, that it was not possible to identify the perpetrators
and that the Office of the Regicnal Prosegubkor, Barvancabermeja, was continuing
the investigation to =stablish whether State forces had been involved. It was
further stated that the preliminary repoct submitted by the committee of
inguiry concluded that the multiple homicide had been carried cut at
Explanacidn Settlement, by a group of criminals known as MAS, on members of the
peasant community of the Tres Amigos, Explanacidn and Los Qlives Settlements,
for the purpose of dominasting and contrelling the areas in question;
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{r} With regard to the death of Ricardo Rics Serrano, in Bucaramanga,
Santander, on 26 August 13BE, it was stated that on 20 December 1988, the
Fifth Public Order Court of Bucaramanga declared itzelf incompetent to
continue the investigation, since it took the view that thare was no reason to
suppose that the murder had been committed for tercorist purposes and ordered
that the casz be returned to the Ninth Court of Criminal Investigations

{e} With regard to the death of Lefn Cardona, William Antonio Acboleda
and Sergio Ospina in Medellin, Antisquia, on 20 August 1988, it was stated
that the cases were atill at the investigatory stage, items 9f evidence having
been collected without it being possible to identify the perpetratorsg

{t) With regard te the case of Popaydn, Canalete, Cdrdoba, on
30 September 1988, it was stated that It wag at the investigatory stage and
that the authorities had not been successful to date in establishing the
responsibility of specific persons or anki-social groups for the acts in
question:

{n) With regard to the case of Martin Calderdn in Cacota, MHorte de
Santander, on 7 Ootober 1988, it was s2tated that the case was 2:ill at the
investigatory stage and that there was o indication that State seCurity
forces were involveds

{v) With regard to the death of César Castro Espejo, in Puerto Espafia,
Caucasia, Antioguia, on 16 October 1988, it was stated that the case was at
the investigatory stage and that the investigation was encountering
difficulties cof collecting 2vidence due ko the refusal of witnesses to come
forward. It was further reported that there was no indication that State
agents were invelved;

iw)l With regard to the death of Alvarc Fajarde in Isnos, Huila, on
14 Oetober 1984, it was gkated that on 24 Octcher 1988, a warrant of arrest
was issued for a second lisutenant and that on 22 December 1%88 the
investigation had ended and pre-trial proceedings had begun,

84. iIn addition, the reply of 9 Januacy 1989 from the Government of Colombia
2tated that the allegations comminicated to the Governdent by the Special
Rapportaur lacked both truth and objectivity. ‘the Government recognized the
complexity of the situation axperienced by the country and the difficuolties
encountersd in preventing criminals from escaping justice, but that 4id not
indicate eilther its coaplicity or its acquiescence in the commission of
atrocious erimeg againat the civilian population, It was further stated that
the President, in order to deal with that problem, had suggested a number of
yolicies, such as ztrengthening the QOffice of the Attorney-General of the
Wation, appointing eivilian prosecutors for the armed forces and national
glice, establishing the Presidential Council for the bDefence, Protectlion and
Promotion of Human Rights, signing and ratifying the international inscruments
ralating to the defence of fupdamental rights and promoting them as an
objective of the country with the participation of the armed forces,
eataplishing Public Order Couart® and Tribunals dedicataed axclusively to this
parpose and suspending the emergency military courts for the trial of
civiliang. The reply further stated that the Government was not unaware of
the possibility that member® of the State security forces, abusing the powers
entrusted ta them, might commit illegal acta, for which they would be held
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criminally and administratively respongsible, but that the allegation that the
entire armed forces wers compromised in an Institutional policy of wiolating
human rights was contrary to all the evidence. According to its reply, the
Government was using the institutional coerclve machinery to put an end to nhew
forme of wviclence and criminal activities of the extreme left and extrems
right as well as drug traffickers.

Czechoglovakia

A%, On 28 July 198%, z letter was Bent to the Goverpment of Czachoslovakia
transmitting the zllegation that on 26 April 1988 a person naned Pavel Wonka,
aged 35, had djed in Hradec Eridlové prison after having been detalned since

5 April 1988, 8is family was allededly not allowed tg see his body and was
given no explanation of his death. It was also alleged that during his
previcus detention which had lasted until 26 February 19828, his physical and
pavchological health had been affected by the physical abuse in Minkovice
prison.

6. The Special Rapporteur reguested information on the above-mentioned
allegation and in particular on any investigation of the case, including an
avtopsy, and measures taken by the sauthorities to bring those responsible to
justice and prevent further ceocurrence of sach d=aths.

87. On 20 October 1988, a reply was recelved from the Government of
Czechoslovakla, stating that $n the course of his detention from 26 May 1988
in prisons at Hradec Eralové and No, 1 in Prague, amd during his priscn terms
at prizecns Ho. 2 at Liberec and Wo. 2 in Prague and at Plzen from

13 hugust 1987 to 26 Februvary 1988, no viclence had been used against

Pavel Wenka not had he been subjected to any degrading treatment. It was
further stated that he had died on 36 April 1388 in the prison at

Hradec Kralové and that the autopsy performed immediately after his death had
actablished that death had been caused by heart failure after a blocd clot had
penetrated the pulmonary artery. The source cof the bloed clot was said to be
thrombasiz in the velns arcund the prostate. It was also stated that the
representatives of Helsinki Watch, a non-governmental organization, had
menticned in their report of 4 May 1988 on the result cof the auvtopsy on the
deceased that they had not found any evidence of wiolence or mistrsatment ¢n
the body.

Denocratic Yemen

88. On 9 November 1988, 3 letter was sent to the Government of Democratic
Yemen bransmitting the following allegations:

(2} On 12 December 1937 Hadi Bhmad Hasir and 34 other defendants were
zsentenced to death by the Supreme Court on charges of treason, terrorism and
saborage, in connection with the Eighting which broke cut in the capital in
January 1986, Tt was alleged that the defendants were granted access to their
defence counsels only shortly bafore the krial, following monthsa of
incomaunicado detention, and that they were tortured ip detention. It was
futther alleged that they wete not allowed to appeal againat the verdicts by
the Supreme Court. ©On 29 December 19687, Hadil Ahmad Hasir and Eour others
sentenced to death were reportedly executed in al-Mansura Prison in Aden;
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iv) Between May and July 1588, three men, named Said ba Mu'awwad
ba Daruran, Ahmad Barghash bin Paggar ba Darwan and Ali S5a'id al-Amudi, who
had allaegedly been arrested on 23 January 1968, died in custody either at
al-HMukalla or al-Fath Mllitary Camp in Aden. It was alleged that althouwgh the
authorities ¢laimed that the detainwes died ag s result of a heart problem,
their bodias had not been returned te their families,

BY. The 3pecial Rapporteur requested information on the ahove-menticned
allegationas apd in particular on any investigation of the cases, including
autopasies, and measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to
jngtice and prevent furthar occurrence of such deathe.

4., at the time of preparation of the present report, no reply had beeh
received from the Government of Democratic Yemen.

El Salvador

91. On 1 Bovember 1988 a cable was sent bto the Govarnment of El Salvador
concearning the alleged killing of four day labouretrs, members of the
Agociacidn Nacional de Trabajadores Aqropacuarios (AHTA) [Hational aesociation
of farm workers) from El Chile Piedra Luna, juriedletion of Yamabal, Morazén,
on 1% November 1988 by memhers of the Third Brigade, Infantry of San Miguel
and Military Detachment Wo. 4 of San Prancisco Gotera, Morazdn, and the
allaged threat to the life of Rend Benitez Medrano, father of one of the

four victima.

92. The Special Rapporteur, axpressing his concern for the life of

René Benitez Medrand and his family, appealed to the Government to take all
nacessary measures to protect the life of René Benitez Medrano and membars of
ANTA who were allegedly arresated or threatened,

93, On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent transmitting allegations that during
the past year an increasing number of perscngs were allegedly killed aithar by
members of the Salvadorian armed forces or by paramjilitary groups, so-callad
"death squads®. The wvictims were =aid to have included pesgante, workers,
students, politicians and trade-unionists. Some of tha victims were allegedly
suspected of support for and collaboration with the guerrilla groups.
According to the scurces of the information, swuch killings were carried out in
a sunuary or ackitrary mannar, although military awtherities had claimed that
soma of the vickim? had died jin combat or had been the targets of querrilla
attacks. It was also alleged that, despits the authoritiesz' glaim that the
*death sguadz" were Independent extremist groups of the right and left which
were beyond Government control, evidenca suggested that members of zuch groups
included pelice and military personnel acting in plain eclothez, under the
orders of superior officers. It was further alleqed that inquiries into =uch
killing=s were repeatedly hampered by intimldation, Iinterfersnce in the work of
the Jodiclary and selective applicatien of the rules governing evidence.
Congequently it was alleged that, with a faw exceptions, no Investigation of
such deaths was carrled oubt and that only a very few of those whe had given
the orders to kill were brought to justice.

04, The Special Rapporteur described, by way of example, 13 incidents of
killings which allegedly occurred during the period betwaen June 1987 and
April 1988,
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55. In addition, the Special Rapporteur menktioned the alleged killing of
three women in San Martin, im an attack by Frente Farabundo Marti de
Liheracidén Nacional {FMIN) guerrillas on a bus carcying textile workers,

96, On 9 Hovember 1988, ancther letter was sent transmitting further
alleqations of summary or arbitrary exesutions. The Sperial Rapportenr
described by way of exanmple seven alleged incidentz of killing, including the
allegad killing of 10 peasants on 21 Saptember 1983 in the village of

San Francisco, San Sebastidn, Deparctment of San Vicente, by soldlers of the
Jiboa Battalion.

97. In both latters, the Special Rapporteur reguasted information on the
above-mentioned allegations, and in particular on any investigations of the
cases and measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to
Justice and prevent further ooourrence of such deathsg.

98. On 21 July 1988, a letter was received from the Goveroment of

El Salvador, cancerning the killima of Herbert Ernestos Anaya Sanabria on

26 October 1987, which wes mentioned by the Special Rapportear in his last
report (E/CN.4/1988/22, paras. 92-94). According to the letter,

Herbert Ernesto Anava Sanabria, Co—ordinator of the mon—goveromental

Human Rights Commission of El Salvador (CDHES]) was assagsinated in an act of
terrcrist violence. Tt was stated that on 28 October 1827 the Office

of the Government Attorney had appeinted two speclal investigators

tc look inte the case and that, on 4 Jancatry 1988, a person named

Jorge Atberto Mirarda Arévalo, a suspect implicated {in the killing of

anava Sanabria, was handed over to the First Criminal Court. It was further
stated that the accused conficmed before the judge hias confession concerning
tils participation in the killing., as a result of which an order was issued f£or
his detention. It was &also stated that the President of the Special Criminal
Investigation Commission and Minister of Juatice had indicated that avidence
ravealed that Anaya Sanabria had been executed by the People's Revoluotionary
Army (ERF].

Equatorial Guinea

99. On 20 Getober 19838, a cable was sent to the Government of Egquatceial
Guinea concerning the case of Joaguin Elana Borenque, former member of the
militacy police, apd Francisco Bonifacio Mba Wguema, sub-lieutenant of the
arwed forces, who ware allegedly sentenced to death by the Military Court
{consejo de erral on charges which were pot nade puoblic. It was alleged
that a group of 19, including the above-mentioned two, arrested in the first
week of September 1388, were tortured ducing their detention and that the
trial by the Military Court was of a summary nature, without guaranteas of the
rights of the accused as provided for in article 14 of tha International
Covanant on Civil and Political Rights.

100, The Specisl Rapporteur requested information on the above-mentiomed cases
and in particular on the proceedings of the Military Court as a result of
which the two persons were sentenced to dsath.

101, At the time of preparation of the prasant report no reply bad been
received from the Government of Equatorial Guinsa.
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Ethiopia

102. On 9 November 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Ethiopia
transmitting the following allegations.

103, During the sviction of the inhabitants of Mihlarb and Bet-Schehaghe
villages in Brtra {(Britecea) in August/September 1984, Said Osman Bamld and
Mohamed Eer-Eeblan were allegedly shot dead by zoldiers of the govermment
forces when they resisted eviction,

104. In atother incident on 24 October 1988, in the village of Mai Harast,
Caret District, Akeleguzai, 1l pecsona were allegedly killed by govecnment
geldiers when they zhot indigoriminately at the villagers to enforce evietion,

105, The Special Rapporteur raquested information on the above-mentioned
allegation=, and in particular con any investigation of the cases and measuras
taken by the aothorities to bring those respongsible to justice and prevent
further cccurrence of such deaths.

106, At the time of preparation of the prasent report no reply had bean
recaived from the Government of Brhiopia.

Guatemala

107. On 7 July 1988, a cable was Zent to the Government of Guatemala
concarning the allegation of death threaks by government agents or individuals
acting with the Government's acgulescernce against officers and membersz of the
Electrical Workerz2 Union [STINDE) Iin El Petén and their families,

108, In view of a number of allegationg of killinga of trade-unioniets, the
Special Rapporteur, expresfsing hie concarn for the life and gecuority of the
abovarmentioned persons, appsaled to the Government to take every possible
measure to protect their livez and regquestad information on those cases, in
particular on any inveztigations thereof, by the appropriste suthorities and
staps taken to ensure the safety of the persons concerned.

109. On 20 September 1988, annther cable wasR sent concerning the case of

Pr. Andres Girdn, a priest and leader of the Asociacidn Haciepal de Campeszines
Pro—Tierra (AWC! (Naticnal association of peasants for land}, whe was attacked
on 11 September 1988 near Tiquisate, Escuintla, by a group of armed men.
Rodolfo de Ledn Veldsquez who wae accompanying FPr. Girdén was allegedly shot
dead. It was allegaed that Pr. Girédnm had repeatedly received death threats for
hig role in ANC, from paramilitarvy groups such as The Ejército Secrato
Anti-Comunista (ESA) [Secrat anti-~Communizt arny},; whose membars reportedly
intluded certain nmilitary and security force personnel acting under superior
arders.

110. In view of a number of allegations that several pergons were killed by
paramilitary groups after receiving similar threate, the Special Rapporteur
expresged his concercpn for Pr., Girdn's life and regquested information on the
measures taken to protect it and that of others receiving similar threats and
on the appropriate agthorities' investigation of the murder of

Rodolfs de Ledn Velisquesz,
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i1il. On 30 September 1988, a third cable was sent concerning alleged death
threats against members of the Grupe de Rpoyo Mutuo por =1 Aparecimiento con
Vida de Huestros Familiaras (GAM) (Mutual support group for the return of
missing relatives alive) in the v¢illage of Pachoj, Department of El Quiché.
It was allegad that Juan Ajanel Fixcar and Sebastiana Bamos, in particular,
were adoused and threatened at a comwunity meeting by the Commander of the
Patrullas de Agtodefensa Civil {(PACY (Civil Defence Patralg) of the region.

112. The Special Rapporteur, eXpressing his concern for the life of the
above-menticned members of GAM, reguested information on the measurses taken to
protect the lives of the parsons receiving death threats.

It3. Om 28 July 19B8, a letter was Eent transmitting the allegation that,
during the past wvesr a large number of persons waere alleged to have beaen
ki1l1led in various parts aof the country by groups of unidentified armed men in
some ingtances 5aid to be members of the aecurity forces. According ko one
spurce, a total of 420 paraons ware killed in & sommary of arbitrary manner
during 1987.

L14. Among those killed, a number of perzons were allagedly victims of
military operaticons. The Special Rapporteur dascribed by way of example the
following incidents:

fa) On 10 April 1987, in the village of Xecnup, Joyabaj., EL Qulché,
12 farmers ware Xilled when they attempted to return to their village from
which they had been expalled Five yaars earliers

ibY On 26 September 1987 in Tisumal, Mebaj, Bl Quiché, two persons were
kille=d by army #helling, bombing and strafing by plan&s and he=llicopters;

ic} On 27 September 1987, in Xeucalbitz, Mebad, Bl Quiché, 13 persons
were killed in a military operation, incloding a 3-year-old girl.

115. In addition, a number of persons were allegedly abducted bw groups of
unidantifisd armed men and later found dea’ on roads or by the wayside, often
with signg of torture. Jt was allaged that these paramilitary groups used
particular kinds of vehicles normally used by the security forces and acted
with total impunity. The Special Rapportear describsd by way of example,
four incidents of such killings which allegedly occurred during Janvary and
February 1968,

116, Cn 9 Hovembar 1983, another latter was sant transmitting allegations of
killings by qroups of unidentified men ln various parts of the country. The
Special Rapportenr dascribed, Ly way of axample, 50 sach incidents which
allegedly occurrad during the period between February and September 1588,

117. In both letters, the Special Rapperteor requasted information on the
alleged cases and in particular on any ilnvestigations made and any measures
taken by the authorities andsfor the judiciary to establish the facta and to
bring those responsible to justice,

118. At the time of preparation of the present repott no reply had besn
received from the Government of Guaktemala.
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Haiti

119. On 7 July 1988, a cable was sant to the Government of Haiti concerning
the allaged death threats made by local governpment and security officials and
othare againat several membars of lay Catholie organizations, ineluding

Tat AnBam in the Jean Rabel area.

120. In view of several =imilar ipcidents Auring the past year when a numher
of pargong were allegedly killed or sericusly wounded by membars of the
sacurity forces or qroups of armed civilians, the Special Rapporteur exprassed
his concern for the life and security of tha above-mentioned parsons, appealed
to the Government to take the necessary measures to protact their lives and
requasted information on the above-mentioned casas.

121. 9n 14 September 1988, ancther cable was sant concerning the incident
which occurred on 11 September 1983 at 5t. Jean Bosco Catholic Church in
Port=au-Prince where a group of armed men allegedly attacked the congregation
daring mass in the presence of members of the security forees and killed

fiva pearsons.

122. A5 in his previous cable, the Special Rapporteur sxpressed hisz concern,
appealed to the Government on purely humanitarian grounds to take the
flecessary Measures to protedt the lives of the persons concerned and teguegted
information on the above-mentioned incident, in partieular on tha
investigation made or measures taken o guarantea the pigqht to life of thage
persons,

123, On 9 Bovember 1988, a letier was gsent concerning allegations that during
the past year a number of persons were killed by maphers of the secutrlty
forces or armed individuals allegedly acting with the copnivance of the
sacurity forces or government officlals. The victims ware said to include
nmenbera of Catholic lay organizations, human rights organizations and trade
unions, In gome cagses the victims ha? reportedly been attacked or threatened
bhefore being mutdered. The Special Rapporteur degcribed, by way of example,
threa alleged incldentz of such killings, inclodiog the Rillimg of

Joseph Lafontant, one of the founderz of the Ligue Aaftienne des droits
humains (Hajtian human righk2 league) and Executive Dirzector of the Centre de
promotion das droits humains (Centre For the promotlan of human rights), on
t» night of 10711 July 19848,

124. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the allsgations and in
particular on any investigations of those cases, including autopsies, and any
measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to justice and
prevent further oocurrence of auch deaths.

125. On .23 December 19838, a letter wasz received from the Government of Haiti
transmittimy information on the measures taken by the nmilitary Government of
Hajitl concerning buman rights and stating rhat the milivary Government, in its
detarmination to congolidate the process of establishlmy a representative
democracy, had jssued four decrees conflrming Haiti's adherence to the
International Covenant on Civil and Politizal Righta, the Internatisnal
Covenant on Economic, Social and Political Rights, and the Conventisn Againat
Torture and Other Cruel, Inbuwan and Degrading Treatment or Punjishment and its
ratification of the Inter-American Convention to Prevent and Punish Tortuce.
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BEonduras

126. On 28 July 1968, a letter wa2 sent to the Governmant of Honduras
bransmitting allegations of killings by members of the security forces or by
unidentiffed men. The Special Rapporteur described, by way of example, the
following casas:

{a] ©On 6 October 1587, in the port of Tela, Department of Atlintida,
Gilkerta Isauls Requenc and MWarcigo Ortiz Lediva were killed allegedly by
agents of the Direccidn Hacional de Investigaciones (DRI) (Criminal
investigation service}. It was alleged that after having been gquestioned at
the DNI office, agents accompanied Izanla Requenoc to his house where they shot
bimg

k) ©On 7 September 1987, in Comwayagua, José Luis Pérez Ochoa, aged five,
was beaten by members of the security forces when he allegedly tried to stop
them from mistreating his parent2. The child died in the Tequcigalpa hospital
on 11 October 1987, According te the police the child died of pneumonia)

{c) On 5 Januacy 1988, in Tegucigalpa, Jogd Isaims Vilorio, a former
ariry sargeant and alleqed member of a “death sguad", wag shot dead by
four unidentified gunmen. On 14 January 1988, in San Pedro Sula,
Miguel Anqel FPawdn Salazar, regional head of the Honduran Human Rights
Commiseion, and Moises Landaverde were shot dead by a qunman. Iaafas Wloric
and Pavdn Salazar were twa of the withesses in the cases of disappearance of
four persons in Horduras before the Inter-American Court of Human Rights;

{d] On 7 April 1488 in Tegucigalpa, five students were allegedly killed
when security forces shot at the crowd during a demonstration in front of the
American Embassy.

127, On 5 Hovenber 1988, another letter was sent to the Sovernment of Honduras
transmitting the following allegations:

{a} ©m 27 Septenbaer 1977 in San Pedro Sula, Juan Caballerc Sanchez and
Roberto Ortiz Lopez were allegedly shot dead by eight DHI agents after their
car was stopped and they were forced out of it. One of the victims was
reportedly the common-law husband of a leader of the Pederacidn Unitaria
de Trabajadorea de Honduras (FUTH) (United Federatlon of Workers of Honduras)
who had taken part in a hunger-gtrike in suppore of claims being made by the
textils workers' union SITRATEXHONSA (Sindicate de Trabajadoras de Textiles
de Honduras S.5.)7

{b} On 27 July 1988, in the Mesa Grande refugee camp, José Maria Leiva
was allegedly sarrested by members of the army apd later execukted,

128. In both letters, the Special Rapporteur requested informaticen on the
alleged cases and, in particular, on any investigations made and any measzures
taken by the authorities and/or the judiciary to establish the facts and bring
theze respongible to juetics.

129. On 19 May 1988, an official communication was received frow the
Permanent Miasion of Honduras o the United Wationz Office at Geneva,
transmitting a report by the Interinstitutional Commission of Human Rights of
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Honduras {CIDH) referring, inter alla, to the cases of Jogé Isajas Vilorio,
Miguel Angel Pavén Salazar and Moises Landaverde. Regarding the death of
José Isaia= Vilorlo, it wae reported that a group called "FLE Cinchonero® had
claimed responsibility for the killing. Regarding the deaths of

Migusl Bmgel Pavdn amd Moises Landaverde, a report on the preliminary
invegtigation, including testimony by a Eoraneic expert, was attached.

India

13). On 28 July 1988, a latter was sent to the Government of India concerning
the allegation that, on 19 April 1986 in Acrwal, Bihar State, 21 persons were
allegadly shot dead by the police during a peaceful gathering in connection
with a land dispute. Sevaral persons wer= =said to have died, on the way to
hospital, of injuries gustained in the police shooting. Sharat Sac was
allegedly found dead after having been taken alive to the police station. It
wag 2lleged that the police opened fire, without a prior warnlng, at the
gathering crowd, which included women, children and elderly persons.

131l. The Special Rapporiteur requasted Iinformation on the allegad deaths and in
particular on any investigaticns of those cases, including avtopsies, and any
measuraes taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to justice and
pravent Eurther cccurrence of such deaths.

132. On 13 September 1988, a reply was raceived Erom the Govearhment of India
concerning the alleged deaths at the end of May 1937, during communal viclence
in and around Meerut, Uttar Pradesh, which the Special Rapporteur referreqd to
in hix latest report {ESCH,4/1988/22, parags. 106-108). Aaccording ko the
reply, the State Government of Uktar Pradesh was carrying out investigations
and the final outcome was awaited., It was aldo stated that, meanwhile, the
State Government had activated a scheme for providine financial relief to the
families of pergons who had lost their lives in the course of the riot.

133, On 30 Hovember 1988, & reply was received from the Government of India
concerning the alleged incldent of shooting of 21 persons by police on

19 April 1988 in Arwal, Bihar State, in connection with a dispute over a piece
cf land in the willage. According to the reply, on 19 April 1998, come

600 or TU0 persona gathered on the land in question disobeying the orders
promulgated urder section 144 of the Criminal Procedural Code and indulged in
viclence., It was stated that, after the police had arrested four persons and
withdrawn to the police station, the police gtatlom was surrounded by a
viclent mob, demanding the relesase of the arrested persons., It was also
stated kEhat shobts were fired at the police statieon, police barracks and the
family quarters nearby. Under the orders of the Sub-Divisional Officer and
the magistrate, shots were fired by the police, resulting in 11 deaths. It
was further stated that the injured persons were given first aid and taken to
the Patna Medical College Hospital where i0 of then subsequently disd, thus
bringing the total namber of deaths to 21.

134. On 12 Janvary 1999, the Special Rapporteur met the Representative of the
Government of India.
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Indonesia

135. On 7 Movembsr 1988, a cable waz sent concerning alleged cases of imminent
execution. According o the informaticon received, two prisconecs named .Javarl
and Sukarjo, sentenced to death for their alleged involvement in the 1965 coup
attenpt ware executed during the night of 15716 October 1388. Fears were
expressad to the Special Rapporteur that other priscners sentenced Lo death on
aimilar charges might be facing Imminent execution. The names of 11 prisoners
ware meotioned,

136. The Special Rapporteur, recalling his previous appeal made on 3 June 1985
for the life of those sentenced to death in commactlon with the
above-tenticned coup attempt, redquested information on the present status of
legal proceedings concerning the prisoners npantioned above.

137, On 28 July 1988, & letter was sent transmitting the allegation that,
during the past sevaral years, a numbar of persona had been killed in

Eaxst Timor by Indonesian military persconnel. Thirteen alleged cases of such
killings (10 in 1986 and 3 in 1987) were described by way of examples. In
addition, the lektter transmitted the nllegation that Auring 1986 and 1947
several persons had died in police or military custody, The following

sevean Ccages were described by way of example:

{a) Leman bin Idriz died following a disturbance in Salemba prison in
1984 during which e waz allegedly kicked and beatan. En Augusk 19B7,
twe priscn officiale were convicted by the Fast Jakarta Districe Courk of
causing alight injuriegs to the prisoner and were gentenced to suspended
santapnces of 3 years and 18 monthe' imprisomment;

{b} Ferdinand Tarigan died in Simulangun police station on
5 Hovember 1986. His body was =aid to have borne marks of torture, hut the
police waz reported to have aoncunced that he hanged himself in the police
atation lavatory. Althowgh the arcest of the Chief of the Simulangun police
station and three other police officers was ordered, no charges had been filed
by Bpril 1947;

{¢} Joni Silvester Hoban, from Cengkaren, West Jakarta, died in hospital
on 12 Rpril 1387 after having been arrested on 1 April 1587 by the local
nilitary district command {(Koramil) and released on the following day. He was
alleged to have died as a result of injuries following 1ll-treatment in the
Foramil:

{d} HNasehat bin Slamet Jdied on 8 July 1%87 allegedly on the way to
hospital from the police statlon in Socuth Jakarta after having been arrested
on 7 July 1987. HRi= body waz =zaid to have borne marks of torture;

{2} Dmar Marjuki from Pllar in Karamg Asing, Cikajang, West Jawa {Java).
died on § September 1987 on the way to hospital from the Bekasi main police
station, after having been arrested on 7 September 19587. The police wera
reported to have stated that he had been attacked by other prisomers)

{£} GSailpin bin Pule was found dead op the night of 21/22 October in the
Citarum River after having been arrested on 1% October 1987 and taken bto the
Muara Gembong police atation. The police subsequently denied that Saipin had
ever been Aetalned;
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{g) Paijan, alias Buanyg, died on 2 December 1%97 in the police station
in Tanah Jawa, after having been arraested on 30 Movember :1%87 by the
Tanah Jawa Koramil and taken to the district office in Afdeling 1, where he
had allegedly been teortured.

138. The Special Rapportenr reguested informaticn on the above-mentioned
allegations and in particular on any investigatlonzs of those cases, including
autopsies, and any weazures takep by the auvthorities to bring those
responsible to justice and prevent Eurther cccurrence of such deaths.

139. On ¢ January 1989, a reply was received from the Government of Indonesisa
stating that, with regard to the prisoners involved in the 1965 attempted
coup, the sentences of those convicted of treason were carried owt in total
conformity with the due process of the law and in accordance with Indonesian
criminal law and procedures. It was also stated that, throughout the trials
of the defendants who were involved in the abortive coup, the courts had
agdhered to and implemented, inter alia; the principles of presumption of
innocence, rule of law, open and public trial, fair compositlon of the court,
ard guarantes of the rights of the defendant to legal counsel and to appeal
for ¢clemency, It was further stated that the trials were indeed falr and open
ke the poblic and the press, that those convicted had had the right to appeal
for clemency to the President of the Bepnblic and that their appeals had heen
relected on the grounds of the gravity of the crimes, iz they had been
directly lovolved in instigating and <arrying out the abortive coup which had
resulted in considezable leoss of 1ife and inflicted much suffering on the
Indome=sian people. According to the zeply, the seemingly long delay in
carrying out the executions was due to the time needed Ly the judiciary and
the executive to ascertaln that justice was really upheld., 1t was also stated
that the megnitode of the crimes, which involved several thousand persons,
required a considerable time for trial and clemency proceedings, and that, in
fack; the defandants ware afforded every legal avenuoe, It was further stated
that the sentences were carcried out only after all legal reccurse had been
comzletely exhauvsted and after those convicted were given the opportunity of
meeting their familles and relatives and that their burials were carried cut
in accordance with thelr re=ligious beliefs. In conclusion, it wes stated that
the Government firmly balieved that there was no guestion of summacy ok
arbitrary execution.

140. ©n the same day, ancther reply was received with regard to the situstion
in East Timor, sktating that the true situation prevailing thare was as shown
by the findings of humanitarian organizations, such as the International
Committee of the Red Cross (ICRC). The reply alss mentioned the findings of
the Chief Minister of the Australian FNorthern Territory who had led a
delegaticon of officlials, jouenalists and Timcrese to the province of

East Timor frow 9 to 11 Hovember 1988, It wes statad that the party had £gund
ng ceprkession; no atarvation and no restrictions on freedom of movement and
religionm, The reply also referred to "the Upltéd States State Department’s
categoric relection of the allegationz by a pumber of United States
Corngressmen and Senators of abuses of human rights in East Timor™. It was
alsc stated that the province had been officially opaned as of 1 Japuary 1939
and thus East Timorese residents were free o travel without restriction and
entry restricticna for outsiders had been Lifted.

141. On 13 January 1%89, the Special Rapporteur met the Permanent
Represantative of Indonesia to the United Hations Office at Geneva.
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Iran [(Islamic Republic of)

142, Cables were sent to the Sovermment of the Islamic Republic of Iran

on 26 August, 14 September, 1) and 15 Hovember, 1, 8, 9, 20 and

23 December 1988 concerning allegations that since July 1988 a large number of
prisoners, said to be mambers or supporters of groups or organlzations
opposing the Government, had been exacuted and several others were facing
imminent execution in various parts of the counktry. According to information
reraeived, a number of prisansrs had their sentences of imprisonment changed to
tha death sentence or ware executed even though their terms of imprisonment
had been completed. The Special Rapportaor, mentioning a total of some

150 casaz of prisoners whose namez had been received, appealed to the
Government on purely humanitarjan grounds ko ensure that the right to life of
those persons was protected and requestad information on the aforementioned
Cases,

143, On 13 January 1989, a cakle was sent concerning 102 persons who might be
facing tmminent exacntion. According to the information, thase persons, as in
the caszes commuinicated to the Government by the pravious eables, had alraady
served or were currently secving sentences of imprisonment. It was allsaged
that many of the persons in quastion ware tortured and deprived of visits from
their families.

L44. In view of persistent raports received that several thousand persons had
been executed withouot trial or with a trial of a summary nature, khe

Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government to ensuce that the cight B0 life
of the abovea-manktioned persons was ptotected as provided for in the
Intarnational Covenant on Civil and Political Righbs, He also reguested
information on the above-mentionad cases as well as any information on the
fate of the parsons mentionad in hiz previous cablas, a3 follows: cable af
26 August concerning 12 persons, cable af 1 Boavember concerning

Ali Akbar Shalgoolney and Adel Talebhi, cable of 11 November concerning
Faraldoun Faroughi, cable of 15 Wovember concerning 24 persons, <cable of

L Decenber congerning 55 parzons, cable of § December concerning

Soraya Ali Mohammadi, cable of 9 Decembar concerning Monireh Rajavl, cable of
20 Dacember concecning 21 persons and cable of 23 Decembar 1988 concerning

43 persons.

145, On kthe same day, the list of 302 parzons was communicated to the
Permanant Mission of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the United Nations Office
ak Geneva.

146. On 9 Hovenber 198B, a letter was zent to the Government transmitting the
allegation that, since July 1988, a large number of prisconers had been
executed in variogs parte of the country, without trial or with a trial of a
summary nature,. The victims allegedly Llncluded members and aupporters of
organlzatlons and groupa opposing the Government, and also RKurdish prisonera,
The Special Rapporteur described by way of example the following allegationsg

{a) ©m 10 July 1388, 10 persons accused of being “counter-
revyolutionaries and Iragli sples” were executed;

{b) On 20 July 1988 about 20 persons belonging to political opposition
groups were azadcuted in Evin Prison. The victims included thres members of
the Tud=h Party and a member of the People's Pedalyan Qroanization of Iran
(majoricyd,
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{e) Alleqed collaborators with the members of the People's Muiahedin
Organization of Iran [(PM3I) were publicly executed in Kangavar, Bakhtaran and
Izlamabad—-e~Gharbh, According to the official account, 15 PMOT supporters were
axecutaed on about 5 August 1983, They included seven persons executed om
I August 1288 in Bakhtaran and one person on 3 Aogust 1988 in Ilam;

{dl On 28 July 1988, 200 prisonerz said to be PMOI sympathizers, were
executed in Evin Prigson. In Machad, 50 other PMCI synpathizars wers executed;

{e] Om 14, 15 and 16 August 19BE, 560 corpses wers transferred from Evin
Prizson to the Behecht Zahra cementeryj

{f1 It was further alleged that on the night of 15716 May 1968 a large
number of Iragl prisoners of war were found killed, their feet bound with
ropes, in the Mawat reglon in nocthern Icaq.

147, The Speclal Rapporteur requested informatlon on the alleged occcurrance of
summary or arbitrary exacutiong and in particular the lagal proceedings
Eollowing which the alleged exXecutions might have been carriezd cot.

148, At the time of preparation of the present report, no reply had been
receivad from the Government of the Islamic Republic of Iran.

Irag

149, On 6 April 1988, a cabkle was sent to the Government of Iragq concarning
the allegation that, on 14 Match 1988 in the towns of Halabja, Serwan, Fhormal
and the sorrounding villages in northern Irag, more than 2,000 clvilians,
mostly women and children, were killed during the air=raidszs carried out by the
Iragqi Adir Porce using chemical and incendiary weapons, Purther loss of
civilian lives in the abova=mentioned areas was feared,

150. On 5 Septenber 1988, another cable was sent to the Government of Iraqg
concerning the allegation that, at the epd of August 1968, in the Dahcok area,
a large number of civilians, incloding women and children, were killed in
operations carried out by the government forces using chemical weapons.
Further loaz of ecivilian lives was feared.

151. In koth cables, the Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government on
purely humanitarian grounds to ansure that the right &0 life of alvilians in
the affected areas was protected in every poasible manner, and requasted
information conrerning the above-mentioned cases,

152, m 11 Awgust 1988, a cable was sent to the Government of Iraq concerning
the allegation that three Iragl nationals residing in Egypt, Abdul Amir Azhab
Al Ruba'ay, Sadik Saleh Mahdi and Ahmad Mohammed Mahdi Said, who were said to
have been sentenced to death in 1982, were detained by the Egyptian
authorities and handed over $0 the Iragqi authorities on 5 August 1988, It was
alleged that thelr death sentences might be carried out, '

153. The Special Rapportenr requestad information on the above—ment loned
cagex, in particular on the charges, trial and procedures laading to their
conviction and sentencing.
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154, On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Irag transmitting
the allegation that hondreds of personsg were executed without trial or after
trials of a summary nature by the Bevolutlonary Coort or ad hoc special courts
fallowing procedures without the safegouards for a fair trial, ootably withouk
the right of the Adefendant to appeal to a higher tribunal, Among the wictims
were civilian members of the Kurdish ethnic minority, including women,
children and elderly people and opponents of the Government.

155, The Special Rapporteur described by way of example some alleged cases as
follows;

{a} Thirty-one Furda, including five persons undet 18, ware éexecuted
after having been sentenced to death by a military court following summacy
proceedings, nine of them on 18 Bovember and eight on L} December 1987 in
Fa'ideh Garrizon, amd 14 on 28 Dacepber 19487 in Mosul Training Camps

f{b] On 1Z May 1987, in Sulaymaniyaheight Kurds were publicly executed
without trial,

{c)] On 1% August 1987, two members of the Kurdistan Democratic Party
(EDP) were publicly executed in Bersenhk bacracks and In September 1987 another
was edecuted in Kirkouk prison withoot trialj

{d} On 11 Hovember 1987, over 100 Kurds from the willage of Jiman,
Kitkuk Pravines, were summarily executed by sscurity forces after
house-to—honsa ge=arches;

{e) Between 14 and 18 MWovepber 1987, 32 Kurds from Shaglawa, Arbkil
Province, including two minors aged lé, were cummarlly executed;

{f] On 18 Novexmbar 1997, 'Abd al-'Aziz "Abdallabk Othman, a member of the
Kurdistan Popnlar Democratic Party (EPDP), was executed in Abu Gharaib prisong

{g] ©On 20 and 1! December 1387, more than 150 prisonera, incliuding
minors aged From 14 to 17, wera axaruted in Abu Gharaib prison;

(h) Between November 1987 and January 1988 five members of the Kurdiatan
Socializt Party-Irag {ESP-I1) wers executed in Arbil without charge or trial;

(i) Onr 17 January 1988, Sayed Mahdl al-Hakim was killed in Ehartoum by
an agenht sent by the Iragi authorities.

156. The Spacial Rapporteur requested information on the alleged ocourrence of
gunmary or arbitrary execoutions and in particular on the legal proceedings
Eollowing which the alleged executions might have been carried out.

157. On 9 Hovamber 1988, ancther letter was sent to the Government of Irag
transmitting the allegation that, on B Dctober 1988, 48 persons belonging to
the Rurdizh minority died in attacks by the Iragi Alr Force using chemjcal
weapong nver villages in the Hawia and Chemi-Ragzan area in the Province of
Kirkuk. ®n ll October 19828, 1l persons allegedly Adisd in a similar attack in
the area of Sheikh Bizenl.
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158. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the cases, and in
particular on any investigations made and any measures taken by the
agkhorities and/or the judiciary to establish the Eacts amd bring thoge
rezponsible to justice.

15%. On 5 September 1988, a note was received from the Government of Irag,
tranemitting an official statement issuwed on 2 September 1938 in Baghdad which
strongly denied the use of chemical weapons in the north of Iradg.

160. On 10 September 1988, information was made available by the Permanant
Misaion of Iraq to the United Natilons Offlce at Geneva coocerning the alleged
use of chemical weapona by Irag. According te the informatlion, a Turkish
Foreign Minlstry spokeaman had announced that, in the light of the teats and
examinationa conducted, there was no proof of the use of chemlcal weapons by
Iradg.

161. On 14 Septembexr 1988, a ncte was received from the Government of Iraqg
tranamitting twe decisions promulgated by the Irvagi Revolutionary Command
Council on & and 8 September 1%38, concerning the granting of a genaral
amnesty to fugitive and convicted Kurds and politlcal priscners.

162, On 28 December 1988, a raply was racaived from the Government of Irag to
the Special Rapporteur's letter of 9 Hovember 1388 {see para. 157), reguesting
hin to furnish the names of victims 50 that the Governmant conld provide a
reply.

153. On 11 JFanuary 198%, the Speclal Rapportenr met the Representative of the
Govarnment of Iraq.

164. Om 12 January 1989, a reply was received from the Governmant of Irag,
stating that, with r=gard tc the cases of thres Iragi nationals =said to be
under sentence of death, and handed cver k0 the Iragi aotherities by the
Egyptian suthorities {(see para. 152), Sadik HMahdi and Ahmad Mohamwed Mahdi
were currently in Irag, residing under the zame conditions as any other Iragi
citizen and no legal actlon had been taken against them. As for the third
person, Abdul Awmir Azhal: Al-Ruba'ay, it was steted that he had b=en outside
the coontry fince 1981 of his own free will for medical reasons concerning hia
wife and bad not ceturned. With regacd to the allegation communicated to the
Government by the Speclal Rapporteur on % Hovember 1988, the reply, referring
to the Government'e raply of 28 December 1988, stated that it was not poszible
for the competent authorities to give answers about unknown people and
regquested the Special Rapporteur to provide the Government with accurate
information =0 tha* the zuthoritlas could provide an answar,

Isracl

165, On 28 July 1388, a lektter was sgent to the Government of Israel
transmitting the Eollowing allagations.

166, Since 9 Decenber 1987, over 160 Palestinians in the West Bank, Gaza and
EFast Jerusgalem, incluvding women and children, had been killed by members of
the Iscasl Defance Porce {IDPF). Many of them were reportedly shot during
confrontations between IDF and Palestinian protesters. Some othars, howewver,
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had reportedly not been engaged in violent demonstrations when they were
killed., ©Others allegedly died as a rasult of severe blows raceived from
poldiers. A list of 166 victims was recelved by the Special Rapporteur. It
was alleged that live ampunition was used excessively degpite strict
guidelines on the rules of engagement. Since the guidelines on the use of
live ammunition had beean changed, in March 1988, permitting soldiers to shoot
directly at Palestinians who attacked them with petrol bombs,; the incidence of
fatalities had markedly increased. Tt was alsoe alleged that few cases of such
deaths were adequately investigated and that those found responsible received
anly light punishmenkt, It was further alleged that, sinece December 1987, at
laast 17 Palestinianz had been zhot dead by Israelil zettlers and two Israelis
had keen killed, one army reservist by a Palestinian and a 15-year-old girl
accidentally by a settler during a confrontation between settlers and
Falestinian villagers. 1In addition, it was alleged that tear—gas was misused
by members of IDP and had consequantly caused or contributed to the death of
more khan 40 Palestinlans, WVictims were Said to be those who were especially
vulnerable to tsar—-gas inhalation, such as babies and elderly as well as sick
persond. The Spaclal Rapporteur described seven cases of victims among those
who had allegedly died after having been heavily exposed to tear-gas.

167, On 9 Wovenber 1988, another letter was sent to the Govermment of Israel
goncerning the allegation that, from the beginning of the wprising in the
oocupied territories in December 1987 to the beginning of Saptember 1988, zome
250 Palestinians had died as a result of the actiom taken by IDF. The
majority of the victims ware £aid ro have bean shot dead during confrontations
between IDF and Palestinians. Others had allegedly died as a re=ult of
suffocation from taar—gas and beating. In addition, during July and

August 1988 saveral more Palestinians allegedly died while in the custody of
the Isrcazli apthorities. The Special Rapporteur described four such cases
which had allegedly occurred in July and ABugust 1988,

148, In both letters, the Special Rapporteur, remquested information on the
alleged occurrence of summary or arbitrary execukionsz and, in particular, on
any investligations of these cases, including autopsies, and any measures taken
by the avthoritles to bring those cesponsibla to Justice and prevent further
occurrence of such deaths.,

169, On 10 January 1989, a cable was sent to the Government concerning

So0ha Bechara who was allegedly arrested op Lebanese tarritory and acouged of
having made an attempt on the life of antoine Lahad, "General of the

South lehanasze Army®™. Expressions of concern were received by the

Special Rappotrteur that she might be handed ower to the "South Lebanese Acny™
which woald alleqgedly maean that har life was in danger.

170, The Bpecial Rapporteudr appealad to the Government of Israel on a purely
humanitarian basis to ansure that the right to life of the above~mentioned
pereon was protected and requested information on the case,

171, At the time of preparation of Ehe present report no reply had bhaen
received from the Government of Israel.
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Jamaica

172, Onn 15 Hovember 1988, a cable was sant to the Governmant of Jamaica
conceening three cases of imminent execution of three prisoners namad

Rudolph Walker, Ezekiel Pryce and Lenford Hamilton. It was alleged that the
three could not file an application feor leave ko appeal to the Judicial
Committee of the Privy Council in London as legal ecounsel was not avallable to
prepare such appeals and represent them. It was also alleged that the Court
of Appeal of Jamaica had rejected appeals in the cases of Lenford Hamilton and
Fudelph Walker, without giving any written raasons for its decislons, In the
cagse of Ezekiel Pryce, existence of a written jmigement waz allagedly not
confirmed by the relevant authorities.

171. The Speacial Rapporteur appealad to the Government on puraly humanitarian
grounds ta =tay their execution for the time heing and to ensure that the
rights of the above-mentioned persons were protected throughout the legal
proceedings, and requested information on the legal proceedings concerning the
above-mentioned cases.

174. Subsequently, the Special Rapporteur learned that the three had been
granted a stay of execution.

175. At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had bean
regeived from the Government of Jamaica.

Jardan

176. On 29 Jyne 1988, a cable was gent to the Government of Jordan concerning
four cases of dearh santence. According to information received, Fa'eq Salsh
‘Add Al-'Aziz Al-S5alti, Tayel 'Abd Al-Halim Mahmad Al-Salti, Faisal 'Ali
Mustafa Al=Salti and Muhamaad Bhmad Mustafa Al-Salti wers santenced to death
an 21 June 1988 by the Military Coure,

177. The Special Rapporteur referred ta & note dated 25 April 1988 from the
Government of Jordan concerning the ¢ases of three persons sentenced to death
by the Milicary Court, mentioned in his last report (E/CH.4/1988722,

paras. 46-47), and stated that it confirmed that there was ng right of appeal
adqainst verdicts of the Milltary Court. Stating that it still remained a
nmatter of serious concern that the Military Court did not grant the right to
appeal tc a higher tribonal, the Special Rapportenr requested that the matter
be looked into and that the right to life of the four perszons be protected, in
accordance with the Internaticonal Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and
Econonmic angd Social Council resoclution 1384/50,

176. On 17 October 1988, a reply was recelred from the Government of Jordan,
stating that the trials of the four persons had been conducted in accordance
with the judicial precedures and the legislation in force. It also stated
that the coyurts were presided owver by highly qualified professional judges and
that the proceedings before those courts did not differ from those in other
civil courts with regard to the guarantee of the rights of the accused. 1t
farther stated that Jdeath sentences passed by the Military Court wete exacuted
only after they had gone throogh 2 number of stages in which they were
carefully scrutinized as a safeguard for the convicted persons and that such
sentences required catification Ly the Prime Minister and the King.
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179. Subzequently, tha Special Rapparteur laarned thak thres of the Four
parsons had besn executed on L% July L9238 and the fourth, Muhammad Ahmad
Mustafa Al-Salti had had his sentance computed.

Manritania

180, On 23 November 1948, a cable was sent ko the Goverpment of Mauritania
concerning a4 cerkain number of prisoners, Including Theahim Sare who, detained
for political reasongs at Oualata, ware alleged to be gravely ikl due Lo
inadequate pricon conditiona, in particular enavailability of medical care.

It was alleged that three other prisoners, Tens Youssouf Gueye, Chief Warrant
Officer Ba Alassane Oumar and Lisutenant Abdul Ghoudouss Ba, died of illness
in the recant past in similar conditicons.

181. The Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government on purely humanitarian
grounds to take the pacessary measures to protect the prisonars detained at
Dualata and requested information on the above-mentioned caesessz and in
particular on any Investigation carried out or measure taken to guarantee the
welfara of those persons.

182, On 28 July 19E8, a letter wa2 sent to the Government of Maoritania
transmitting the allagation that on & December 1987 three cfficers of the
Mauritanian armed forces, Lisutenants Saidy Ba, Amadou Sarc and Saidou Sy,
wers allegedly executed after having been sentenced to death on

31 Decembar 1987 by the Cour spéciale da justice (gpecial court of justice) on
chargas of plotking to oyerthrow the Government. It was alleged that thera
was no righkt to appeal to a higher Eribunal.

183. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the alleged cases of
SUIMArYy or arbitrary esgescutions and in particelar on the lagal proceedings
following which the alleged executions might hawve been carried out.

134, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
recaived from the Government of Mauricania.

Mexieco

185. On 13 September 1988, a reply was received from the Government of Mexlco
goncerning the allegad killing of 10 peasants Ecom Ilamatldn, Veracruz, on

27 Aprii 1987, which was mentioned in the Special Rapporteur's last report
{£/CH,4/1988/22, paras. 128-130}. According to the reply, the
Secretary-General of the Veracruz State Government reported that the lncidents
had originated in disputes hetween the members of two local families and no
political conflict was invelved., It was stated thakt nlne persons died az a
result of the incident. Criminal procesdings were instituted in the Court of
First Instance of Mixed Juriediction, which issued a detenticn order against
five persons, and an arrest wacrant against 34 fugitives., It was furkbher
stated that on L8 April 1983 the five prisoners werg sfentenged to 20 years'
imprisonment and a fine of 40,000 pesos in cash and that the convicted men had
sought Leave to appeal, which was granted. The case was currently pending at
the Higher Court of Justice.
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Nicaragua

186, On 28 July 1888, a letter was szent to the Government of Wicaragua
concerning zlleged killings of civilians by the security forces in the
continuing armed conflict between the governwment forces and the Cantra
rebels. The Special Rapporteur described the Eollowing incidents:

{a] In May 1987, eight farmers= from the Uhd district, near the Tuma
River, Department of Zelaya, were allegedly killed v soldiers from a unit in
the tovn of Matiguds, Department of Matagalpa. On 16 Ssptember 1987,

Pable Antonic Manzanares Lépez, aged 12, from the same village was alleqedly
killed by osoldiers from the same unit. Furthermores, on 1 October 1987,
Heriberto Ldpez and Punioc Méndez SAnchez, from the same villages, were
allegadly killed by soldiers from the same wnit., A boy named Abeline Escoroia
Garcia was killed when he stepped on a mine allagedly planted by the saldlersy

(b} On 4 September 1987, in the district of La Campanz, Department of
Chontales, Mariz Eufraszia Ledn Estrada was killed in her houge by government
forces who were allegedly locking for anti-government forges in the victim's
house;

ic) On 1 and 2 November 1987, in E1 Carril and E1 Mojdn, Department of
Jinotega, Marvin Herndndez, a farmer from £1 Carril, and Inocencio Gonzdlaz
Rodriguez, a farmer from EL Mojddn, were allegedly arcested and killed by
enldiers of the Swift Hunter Oscar Trucios Battaliong

{(d) On 9 Pebruary 1988, in the locality known as "Cafio de Agua®, in the
Copalar district of Rio Blanco, Department of Matagalpa, Paula Fuiz Ruiz was
killed, allegadly by a mamber of the government foroesi

{a} On 16 Fekruary 1968, in a place known ac "TLa Cuesta del Coyol™,
Depar toment of Matagualpa, Waltery Antonio Silva, was allegedly killed by an
officer of the Jovermment forcas;

(£} On 17 HMarch 1988, in a place known as "La Mica®", in the El1 Silencio
district, Department of Chontales, Jorge Alejandro Bojas Urbina wac found
dead. It was alleged that Rojas, a former Contra cebel, was killed by four
agants of the State Security after he had refused to continue collaborating
with them in identifying cther Contra rebels.

(q) On 16 March 1988, in La Frescura district, Department of
FRio San Juan, José Félix Lago Soto, was killed by members of the
Pedra Altamirvano Battaliong

{h] ©On 1% March 1988, in the Arimas district of the Acovapa
Jurisdiction, Department of Chontales, Fidel Anastasic Garcia Sevilla was
killed, allegedly by mambers of the Gaspar Garcia Laviana Battalicn.

187. In addition to the foregoing, a considerahle nuomber of civiliane,
ineloding ¢hildren, wers allegedly killed by the Contra rebels when they
attacked co-operative farms, buses and private houses. The Special Rapporteor
recaived information ¢oncerning such incidents, inclwding the names of the
victing,
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188, On 9 Hovembar 1988, another letter was gent to the Governmenk of
Hicaragua transmittimg allewged cases of killing by government Forces which
ware gaid to have ocourred sinee the beginning of 19BE:

{a} On 17 January 1988, 1in the village of El Chile, juriadiction of
San Ramdn, Department of Metagalpa, four memberz of the Cruz Mairena family
were allegedly shot dead by members of the Ssndinista Hermanos Sinchez
co-operative.

(b} On 27 January 1988, in the Matiguds region, Félix Manuel Riza, was
allegedly detained by a group of govermment soldiers. A week later his
mitilated body was found near hiz house;

(e} On 14 Magch 1988, Cruz Castillo, was allegedly dztained by troopa
from the La Patriota army base near Apantilleo. Hizs body was reportedly found
a weak later with stab wounds and macks of tortare:

(d] On 21 March 1988, Mateo Lanzas, Vigcanta Lanzaz, Juan Igle=zia,
Horvin Pérez amd Anastasioc Martinez were allegedly arrested by soldiers from
the La Pakriota base, Hext day thelr bodies were found with stak wounds)

e} On 26 March 1988, three kilometres from the El Coral village,
Department of Chontales, Cruz Teosdolinda Sequeira Urbina, Abraham S#nchez, and
his father Pedro Sanchez, were allegedly killed by two soldiers)

(£} On 26 April 1888, the mother of Edy Moisés Barrera Morales, aged 23,
was allegedly informed of his death in a confrontation with police aftar
having attacked a taxi at km 15 on the Ledn-S5an Isidro highway. His body was
said to have bean batterad and decapitated:

{q} On & May 19828, in Managna, Francisco José Lépez Harnandez was found
dead in a streat with a bullat wound; security forces ware suspacked of the
killing. WHo investigation was alleged to have been carrised ocut so farg

(h} On 20 May 19238, it was anncunced that Carlos Hools Downs, from
Blusfields, Zelaya, had been killed at the Bluefields Command of the
govarnment forces. It was alleged that his body showsed signs of torture and a
bullat wound in the pelvis;

(i! ©On 23 May 1988, RBoger Francisco Poveda Oscorio allsgedly died at the
military bage in Sumuobila, Tasha Pri, Puarton Cabazas, Zona Especial I, Zalaya
Horta. Althouqgh hiz death was reportedly &xplained as suicide, his body
alleqedly borea marks of tarture;

(1} Om 24 Bugust 1988, in Puerto La Esparanza, Valeriano Terres Gomez, a
mambar of the municipal douncil of Valle de Wapi in the E] Rama jorisdietion,
was allegqedly shot dead by Sandinista supporters.

189, In additicn to the Earégaing* & congidarable numbar of civiiians,
incloding children, were killed by Contra rabels., Among cases of such allsged
killing=2 received by the Special Rapporteur was an incldent on 16 April 1988
in Cerro Colaradoa, Matigquis, Departmenk of Matagalpa in which a group of

il Contras belonging to the Beptember 15 reglonal gommand attacked a house and
killed Rigoberto Lopez Ramos, aged 1, and Relna Isabel Lipez, aged 10,
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140, In both letters, the Speclal Rapporteur requested information on the
above-pentioned «ases, and in partlcular on any investigations made and any
meazures taken by the authorities andfor judiciary to establish the Facts and
bring those responsible to justice,

191. On 7 Hovember 1988, a note was recalived from the Governmant ofF Wicaragua
transmitting information concarning the case of Fredy Eduardo Garcia Torres
which had been communicated te the Gavearnment by a letter dated

& Movember 1987, According to the information, the investigation carried out
on the case establizhed that Garcia Torres, had been arrested on 17 May 1987
and that his health had detericrated in prizon without the conpetant
authorities taking the requisite steps to provide him with the medical
assistance he required. A5 a result there was criminal liability which Eell
within the jurisdiction of the military court. On 20 April 1988, the Court of
Pirst Instance of the Managuna regional circuit found two members of the armed
forces guilty of homicide. The defendants were szentenced ko one ye=ar's
deprivation of likerty and the accessory penalities of civil interdiction and
sugpension of their ecivil righta,

Hepal

192, On 9 Kovember 1988, & lekbter was sent to the Government of Nepal
concerning the allegation that on 13 December 1387 on the left bank of the
River Fankai near Surunga willage, Jhafa district, Laxmi Panday, a stuxdent,
aged 19, was shot dead by the police. It was alleged that, after a lawful and
Peaceful meeting on the bank of the River Rankal whers about 500 people had
gathered, the police were confronted with a qroup of seven persons and one
pelice officer fired point-blank at Panday withoot warning., Mo official
inveatigation was reported to have been haeld into Panday's death.

193, The Special Ragportenr pequasted information on the alleged case of death
amd in particular on any investigation of the case, including an autopsy, and
any measutes taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to justice
and prevent further ocourrence of such deaths.

194, At the time of prepacation of the present report no reply had been
received from the Sovernment of Hepal.

Higeria

195, On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Nigeria
transmitting the allegation that during the past several years a nunber of
parsond had been exefuted after having hean eBantenced to death by Robbery and
Firearms Tribunals, under whose procedure the defendant had mo right of appeal
to a higher tribunal. Tt was further alleged that at least 145 persons wete
had bean axecuted after having been convicted of armed robbezy in 1987 and
that during the first three months of 1988, 27 persons were executed,
including 12 persons in January 1988 at Benin City prison in Bendel State,

A number of others were sajid to be s3till facing execution,

196. On % November 1988, ancther letter was sent tranamitting the allegation
that, between Januaty and August 1988, at least 2% persons had bean executed
after having been sentenced to death by Robbery and Pirearms Tribunals.
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1%7. It was further alleged that several cthers, sentenced to death by Robbery
and Firearms Tribunals, were facing execution. The Special Rapporteur
desar ibed some examples ofF such cases as follows:

{a} In Juns 1988, 13 persons aged betwesn 16 and 1B were gsentenced to
death by the Robbery and Firearme Tribunal in Ikeja., Lagos State. It was
alleged that although Robbery and Pirearms Tribunals were special <ourts
outzide the ardinary ocourt system, they followed ordinary criminal procedure
except where specifically empowered to do otherwise and that there was no
specific provision allowing Robbery and Firearms Tribunals to sentence
juveniles to death. It was said that under ordinary criminal law, no juvenile
undar the age of 17 might be sentenced to daaths

(b} On 10 June 1988, Danda Balogun, a labourer, was sentenced to death
by the Robbery and Firearms Tribunal in Oyo Stater

(e} In late June 1988, Frank Sregary Osang a2nd Joseph Qtuba were
sentenced to death hy the Robbery and Firearms Tribunal in Ogoja, Cross River
State;

(d} In early July 1988, London Uwajeya, a stodent, Sammel Utuedor, a
driver, and Ambcoze Ogbanefe, an electriclan, werée sentenced to death by the
Bobbery and Firearma Tribunalz in Warri, Bendel State.

194, The Special Rapporteur regusated information on the above-mentioned
cases, ard in particular on the legal proceeding2 following which the allaged
aexecntions might have been carried ogt,

199, On 13 January 1999, the Special Rapporteur met a representative oE the
Government of Wigeria and received a reply to the aeffect that death sentences
wera pas=ed only in proven and established cases of coomission cf the heinous
crime of armed robbery. Armed Robbery and Pirearms Tribunzls had been set op
to try inter alia cases of armed robbery, and at thedir inception, had been
presided over by wilitary officers. However, the Tribunmals were currently
presided ovar by High Court judges and their procedure was the 2ame as that of
the ordinary courts. All accused persons were etntitled to defence counsel
and, if the accusad was found guilty and seantenced to death by the Tribunal,
the sentencas were normally reviewed before their implementation and were
githar copnfirmed or comoted to terms of imprisonment, In the case of

Ganiyu Ibrahim in Ewara State, the dsath sentence was commuted to five years'
imprizomment. Nigeria never exXecuted juveniles. The representative of the
Govermment added to the reply by stating that all cases communicated to the
Government by the Special Rapporteur were omder review.

Pakistan

200, ©On 9 HNovember 19328, a letter was sent to the Government of Fakistan
transmitting the allegation that on 27 December 1987, Aamser Ali, from
Ghangro Mori village, Sind Frovince, was found dead outside a house near
Hyderabad, after having besen arrestad on 20 Decepbar 1987 with two other men;
Gulab and Hiaz Machhi, and detained at Hosrl police station. Althoogh the
police repartedly claimed that Ameer Ali died of natural csuses, the Two men
detained togethar with him zliegedly wlithessed Apeer Alj being beaten by
police officers at the police station. BSubsequently, on 25 Januacy 1988, the
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kwo Ben, the alleged witnessea of the beating of Amear Ali, were killed
togethar with Mazhar Machhi and Mohammad Ali, when police and arosy parsonnel
raided Ghangro Mori village and shot at people on a boat. It was reported
that on 17 February 1984 a judicial inguiry into the incident of 25 January
was ordered by the 5ind Goverpment.

201. Tha Special Rapporteur requested information on the alleged deaths, and
in particular onh any investigations of those casea, including antopsias, and
any maasurea taken by the apthorities to bring those respongible to justice
and pravent further occcurrence of such deaths.

202. At the time of preparation of the present report; no reply had bean
ceceived from the Government of Pakistan,

Peryu

203. Om 131 July 1988, a cable was 5ent to the Sovernment of Peru concarning
the allaged abduction of 12 persong, =said to be witnezszesz of Killingzs in
Cayara on 14 May 1988 (sea para. 210). The 1I were allegedly abducted by a
group of nilitary patrolmen on 20 Jons and Y JJuly 19349 in Cavara, Department
of Aavacucho.

204, In view of the circumstanges of the above-mentioned incidentz, and in
particular the alleged xillings in Cavara on 14 May 19283, the Special
Rapporteur expruassed his concern for the life and security of the 12 pearaons,
appealed to the Governmant to take every possible msasure to ensure the safaty
of the persons concerned and reguested information on the casas, in particular
on any investiqation carried out by the appropriate authorities.

205, On 14 October 1988, anothet cable waz sent coh¢erning the allaged death
thraats in Saptanber 1983 in Avacuchs against Angela Mandoza da Aecarza,
President of the Asociacion Hacional de Familiarez de Secuestrados y
Dateantdos-Dezaparacidoa an las Zonas Declaradas an Batado de Emergencia del
Paeru {ANFASEP) (Matiopal association of relatives of abducted persons amd
dizappeared detainess in the zones under a state of emergency in Paru and
Maric Cavalcanti Gamboa, a menber of the Collega of Lawyers,

206. On 8 Novamber 1988, a cable wae aent to the Govarnment of Paru concerning
the death threats to the fanilies of Luiz Miguel Pasache and Socrates Porta
Solana who were found dead in Aogust 1988 in the south of Lina., Tha twe
parsons wara allegedly killed by a parapilitary groop called “Rodriqo Franco®,

207. In both cabla=, tha Spacial Rapporter requasted information on the
measures taken by the Government to protect the lives of those who had been
thi eatened ,

20B. On 4 January 1%89, a cable was sent to the Government of Paru conceIning
the alleged killimg cof the witnesses of the Cayara incidents and death threats
directad amainst Carlos Escobar Pineda. According to information recaived, on
14 December 1928, twe community officials of Cayara, Juatinianc Tineo Garcia
and Fernandina Palomino Quiape, were killed together with Antonic Félix
Garcia Tipe, the driver of a trick carevying pasaenoers, including the
above-mentioned two, by troops wearing black ski masks, The thtee were
allegedly the moet recent victims among at least eight persons who were killed
or disappeared after deteption bacanse of their teztimony to civilian legal
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pfficials investigating the deaths in Cavara on 14 and 1B May 1288, or becausze
of their relationship with the eyewitnesses, In that cohhnection, exprassions
of concern were recelved by the Special Rapporteur for the life of

Carlos Bacobar Pineda who, as Speclal Commissioner, lnvestigated the kiliings
in Cavara amnd submitted a report. It was alleged that Escobar had been the
object of harrassment and death threats. PFurthermore, fear was expressed to
the Special Rapporteur for the life of Benadicta Maris Valenzuela Ocayo, the
wife of Justinianc Tirco Garcia.

209. Tha Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government to take every possible
measure bto ensure the right te life and aecurity of the above-mentioned
persons and teguested information on the above-mentloned deaths, and in
particular on invesatigation of those cazes,

210, On 28 July 19828, a latter was sent to the Government of Paru transmitting
the allegation that, on 14 May 1988, in the villadge of Cavara, District of
Huancapi, Province of Victor Fajardo, Department of Ayacucho, at least

29 persons were allegedly killed by members of the military forces. According
to raports, the killings took place in the ccurse of a connter-insurgency
operation ordered by the military commander of the region, following an
incident on 12 May 19288, in which several military personnel had been killed
in an ambush in the locality of Erusco helieved to have heen set by members of
the Sendero Lumincse (Shining path) guerrilla group., Thae victims allegadly
included schoolehlléren, the headmaster of the loral schoal and members of the
local council, Sone of the vickims were allegedly tortured hefore bBeing
killad. The approsimately 300 troops participating in the operation were said
to be from the military bazes of Hualla, Canaria, Colca, Pampa Cangallen,
Cangallo, Huancapi and Huanca Sancos. Lists with names of alleged victims of
the killings were given to the Special Rapporteur.

211, It was further alleged that, during January and Psbhruary 1988, in the
Jocalities of Chalhuanca [Pichirhun-Abaheay), Tagquabamba and San Migusl
(Tintay-Ayamares), a number of parsons were killed by members of the wilitary
forces, During that period, the motilated bodies of three women, one of whon
was dJdecapitated, were found in the area.

212, In addition to the foregeing, the Special Rapporteur described threa
incidents alleged to have taken place in January 19838,

213. On 9 Movember 1988, ancthar letter was sent to the Govarnment of Peru
transmittino the allegation that, during the past year, incidanks of killipgs
by bath the government forces and armed rebel groups, such as Sendero Luminoso
and the Movimiento Revoluciotnario Tupac Amaru (MRTA) (Tupac Amaru
Revolutionary Movement), allegedly continued, especially in the areas under a
state of emergency and administered by political-military commands. The
majority of the victimg were 2aid to be local villagers in those areas, who
were allegedly suspected by the security forces of support for the guerrvillas,
but a number of villagers were saild to have been killed alsoc by the rebal
groups for their refusal to co-operate with them.

214, According to the Peruvian Senate’s official statristice, during the period
from June to the middle of October 1928, 874 politically-motivated killings
pocurrad,

21%. The Special Rapporteur dessribed by way of example nine caaes,
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216, In both letkters, the Special Bapporteur requested information on the
alleged cases of sumtary or arbitrary executions and in particular on any
investigations of those cases; ipcluding autopsies, and any measuresg taken by
the authorities to bring those responsible to justice and prevent further
occurrence of sueh deaths,

217, On 15 December 1988, a letrar was sent to the Government of Peru
concerning the proceedings of the Suprame Council of Military Justice in
regard ko the reported killing of 13 peasants, including two minors, on 22 amd
23 Dctober 1986, in Pomatambo and Pancee Alto, Province of vilcashuamén,
Department of Ayacucho, by medbgrs of the Peruvian army. According to
reports, the Supreme Council of Miiitary Justice dropped the charges against a
nutiber cf military persconnel in the case and terminated the penal proceedings
on 22 June 1988, Tt was also alleged that, in spite of appeals by the
families of the victims, the¥ were not represented in the proceedings.
According to the same reports, the Jointk Command had stated earlier that the
investigation of the incident "astablished rhat acts oaccurred which constitute
infringement= of the applicable regulations pertainipng to the operationa of
the law enforcement authoritiesgn,

218. The Special Rapporteur regpested information on the legal proceedings of
the Supreme Council of Military Justice concerning the above-mentioned case,
in particular ¢n itz decizion to acquit the military personnel originally
charged with the killings.

219. At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
recelved from the Government of Taru.

Fhilippines

220. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of the Philippines
trangmitting the allegaticon that doeing the past year unarmed civilians wera
killed either by members of security forces, the Integrated Civilian Home
Defence Forces {ICHDF) or so-called “wigilante™ gronps, said to be acting with
Government support. Most of the victimg were sald to have been ouspected
supporters of the New People's Army (NPA) or members of community or church
organizations. It was alleged rhat official lnvestigations rarely led to
prosecution due to such reesons as fear or intimidation of witnesses, lack of
co—gperation from the military and lack of Impartiality by milltary courts
which have jurisdiction over casas involving soldlers and the police. In
addition, it was alleged that NpA was respensible for a number of killings of
soldiera, policemen and others, including the killing of Secretary of Local
Government Jaime Ferrer in July 1587, Furthermore, during the local electlons
held in the beginning of 1988 a pnumber of perscons, incliking election
candidates, were killed.

221. The Special Rapporteur described by way of example 28 incidents of
killinge during the period between February 1987 and January 1988, for which
the security forces and paramilitary groups were allegedly responsible.

222, On 9 Novembay 1988, another letter was sent to the Government of

the Philippines concerning the allegation that, during the previous several
menths, killings in & Summary or arbitrary manner by members of the armed
forces, paramllitary “"vigilante* groups and unidentified armed men had
cantinued,
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223, The Special Rapporiedr described by way of example nine incidents of such
killings which aliegedly cccurred during the period betwsen December 1987 and
July 1288, including the cases of three human rights lawyers killed in

June apd July 1988,

224. In both letters, the Special Rapporteur pequested informaticn on the
above-mentioned allegations and in particular on any investigations of the
cages, including autopaiea, and any measures taken by the authorities to bring
those responsible to justice and prevent further cogurrence of guch Aeaths.,

225. On 20 December 19838, a letter was received from the Govermment of the
Philippinea transmitting the following documents prepared by the Fhilippine
Compiaszion on Human Righits:

{a) Primer con the Philippine Commission on Human Rightsa;

{b} Statement on human rights issued by the Philippine Commission on
Human Rights and Guidelines on Visitation and the Conduct of Investigation,
Arrest, Detantion and Related Operations:

{e]) Mannal of Services and Programmes of the Philippine Commiszsion on
Human Rights:

(d} Consolidated monthly accomplishment reports for Janmary-zpril 1988,

226. Om 2] Decembeyr 1988, a reply was raceived from the Government
trapsmitting case reports prepared by the Philippine Commission on Hunan
Rights ont & number of alleged killinge, as follows:

{a}) According to a Commission on Human Rightes (CHR) case report of
17 August 1988 concarning the alleged killing of Andrés Rio and Manuel Dotollo
cn 30 Janoary 1988 at Barangay Himacugo, Hindang, Leyvts, by a Philippine army
patrcl, a team of CHR investigators was sent ko investigate the killings.
While the affidavit of the witness interviewed by the CHR team was sufficient
to eatablish that the clrcumstances immediately prior to the killing of Rio
and Dotolle were not in the natuce of an armed encountecr, as stated in the
cfficial army report, it was not spfficient teo indict the members of the army
patrol who had arrested and taken away tha two persons. CHR wags endeavouring
to cbtain sworn statements from persons who were reportedly eyewitnesses of
the killing, but werese hiding in fear of their lives;

{b} According Lo a CHR case report of 12 August 1982, the alleqgad
killing of Fr. Carl Schmitz on 7 April 1988 at the Parish Convent of Barangay
Bolel, Koronadal, Socuth Cotabato, the Investigating Officer of the
456th Philipping Constabulary {PC) stationed at Horanadal conducted an
on-the-spot lnvastlgation of the case and reported that witnesses saw an ICHDF
member shoot Pr. Schmitz to death. Based on evewWitnesas testimonies, the
Covmanding Qfficer of the South Cotabato PC Command filed a criminal case
against the ICHDF member with the 11th Regional Txial Court, Rranch 24, on
8 april 1988 for morder. Sabsequently, a commitment order was issued on 11
April 1988 for his detentdion at the provincial geol. Tt was established by
the Investigation that the killing of Fr. Schmitz arose from & personal grudge
and was without any political motivation:
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{cl aAccording to a CHR case report of 35 July 1988, the alleged killing
of Alfonso A. Surigao, a hunan righta lawyer, on 24 June 1%88 at his home {n
Tabucanal, Fardo, Cebu Clty, the Hational Bureau of Investigation (HNBI) as
well as CHR carried out an investigation which resulted in the arrest of a
p=rson, who, after having beer apprised of his constituticnal rights, among
others, the right to remain silent ané to be assisted by counsel, willingly
and freely admitted under oath that he had killed Surigao under the
instructions given by a major of the PC Regional Security Onit in Cebu. The
PC major waz subsequently placed under technical arrest by the military
anthorities and confined to barracks. A charge of murder waz filed with the
Cebu City Fiscal's Office againat the defendant and his two companions and the
PC Judge Advocate—General was to initiate a preliminary investigation of the
charge of murder against the PC major. A petition was filed with the
Prasident bo walve the court martial jurisdiction over the major amd to have
him tried simultanecusly with the defandant in a civil court. Mo waiver had
been iszued at the time of preparation of the CHR case report. The other two
companiona of the defendant were still at large;

(A} According to a CHAR case report of 11 Awgust 1988, congerning the
alleged case of killing ©f Vicente Mirabueno, a huwan rights lawyer, on
6§ Pebroary 1998 by two guniven at the public market in General Santos City, the
police authorities of @General Santos City arrested ona of the two aileged
quomen on 7 March 1938 and the zuzspect was charged ln court on tha =ame day
and detained at the city geol. His companion was satill at large. The CHR
invastigation reached the conclusion that Mirabuepo's killing did not result
from hig activitiez as a human right: lawyer. The CHR regional office was
directed to monitor the case and to report any significant development to Head
Offica;

(e} Accarding to a CHR case report of 1l Auguat 1988, concerning tha
alleged case of killing of Ramo=s Cura, a lawyer, on 18 June 19828 in Pampanga
by two unidentified armed men, a CHR tean was 2ent to investigate the case,
but the victim's widow refused to zay anything out of fear for her safety and
that of her family. The victim's father and peghew, whe had reportedly
witnessed the killing, had left their residence and their whereabouts were not
known. The phyzician to whom Cura was brought after belihg shot was also
killed. CHR waz keeping the investigation open:

(f1] According £0 a CHR case report of % August 1988, concarning the case
of Bodiger de los Santos, who was allegedly abducted on 21 Februarcy 1988 by
members of the Integrated Special Operatione Group of the Pasay Police in
Malibay, Pasay City, and waz found on 2% March 1988 Iin Valley Golf Club in
aAntipolo, Rizal, and died in bospital on 23 April 1988, the CHR team
interviewed the only eyewitness to the abduction, who refused to give a
written affidavit and also said that he would refuse to testify in court ount
of fear for hia life anmd that of his famlly;

{9] According to a CHR cass report of 26 July 19939, concerning the
killing of BReynaldo D. Franciseo and. the attempted killing of
Hilari< M, Bustamante, in March 1%BE, KHI and CHE had conducted khe
inveatrigation in April 1988, The two men were abducted by unidentified armed
men on 19 March 1988 in Malate, Manila ard found on 2] March 1%88 in Caloocan
City. Bustamante told the investigators that he and Prancisco bad been
tortured by their abductars in Fatigque uniforma, whe had introdoced then=elves
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as menbers of the PC Capital Reglonal Command (CAPCOM)}, and that they ware
then brouwght to Caloocan City by a blue CAPCOM car and thrown cut of the car.
CHR considered that the caze needed further investigation, since Bustamante
had not fully recovared nor had he been able ta identify any of hiz abducters.

Sowalla

227. On 9 February 1%88, a cable was sent to the Govermment of Somalia
conrerning the death saptences impozed by the National Security Court on

7 February 1%8B. According to information received, the dafendants, including
eight persons =antenced to death, had bheen detained incommunicado since their
arrest in June 1982 and =ome of them had been torrured during detentlon. It
was also alleged that the NKatlonal Security Court had been gomposed of one
government Minister and two military officers, that the prosecuotion had
depended mainly on the confessions of the defendants which were said not to
have beepn submitted as writbtan statements to the court, and that the
allegation of torture had not been examined by the conrt. It was further
raportad that the right of appeal to a hlgher tribunal was not possible ander
the procedure,

223, The Special Rapporteur requested the Goverpment to provide information on
the above-mentioned casee, in particular the proceedinge of the Kational
Security Court, as a result of which the eight persons were gentenced to death.

22%. On 23 Rovember 1988, ancther cable was sent to the Government of Somalia
concerning the cases of five cadets who had allegedly been forcibly returned
from Egqypt to Somalia. MAccording to information received, one of the five had
died az a result of tortura. Expresrions of concern were received by the
Special Rapporteur about the remaining four who were allegedly detained
incommunicado without charge or trial, and whose whersabouts were said to b
WL WL

230. The Speclal Bapporteur appealad to the Governmant of Somalia to snzura
that the right to life of the above-mentioned four persons was protected in
avery poasible manner and regquested information on the alleged death in
detention of one of the five cadets, in particular on any jinvesgtigation
carried ouwt by the appropriate authoritles and on the curreat situation of the
cemaining four.

231. On 13 Januvary 1989, a cable was sant to the Government of Scmalia
concerning alleged indiscriminate bombing raids, possibly including the use of
chemical weapons, carcled out by the government forces on the thres norcthern
towneg of Hargqeisa, Berbera and Burao, reportedly causzing some 20,000 deaths,
According to the information, the internal armwed conflict In the northern part
of the country had intensified and a large numbar of civilians belonglng to
the Izeag clan had allegedly been killed by government forces in a summary or
arkiktrary nanner.

232. The Speclial Rapporteur, expressing his concern for the life and safety of
the ¢ivilian population in the affected areas, appealed to the Government to
take all necessary measures to ensure that the right to life of every citizan
was procecked, In addition, he requested information on the above-mentioned
gllegation, and in partleular on any investigation of the incidents in
gquestion as well as any measures taken to bring those responsible to justice
and pravent further ocgurrence of such deaths,
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233. On 9 November 1988, a latbar waz sent to tha Government of Somalia
transmitking the allegation that, ducing the past year in the intarnal armed
conflick in the nocrthern part of the country, a large numbar of clvilians had
allagaedly bean killad In indiscriminate hombardments by the governmant forces
or executed without ekrial or after a trial of a summary naturs. The

Spzcial Papportear describad by way of axample the following allaged incidents:

{a} On 12 March 1988 in Galileh, foliowing attacks by thes Somali
Narional Movemant (SHM) in the arsa, 16 men, mostly farmers and nomads, were
gunmarily tried and axecoted shortly atter being sentenced to death. On
27 March 1988, alx others were tried and executed in a zimilar wanner;

(b On 31 May and 1 June 1984, in Hargejisa after the SHM attack on
31 May, 2l persong ware executed in three ceparate incidents. The total
numbar of persons exscoted wag alieged to be wery high.

234, Sobgequantly the Special Rapporteur learned that om 11 Febroary 1988 the
President had commuted the death sentences imposed on the eight persons by the
Hational Security Courk on 7 February 19BE {gee para. 227). Two of the eight
perEons warae transfarred to houge arpest and the other six weps given prison
tarmz of 24 yaars.

235, At tha time of preparation of the presant report no reply had been
recaived from the Government of Somalia.

South Africs

236, On 1 Pebrunary 1988, a cable was sant to the Govermmant of South Africa
concerning the alleged imminent execution of the so—nalled "Sharpaville =ix"™,
whiy wara arrested in November 1984 in connection with the unrest and marder
which oceurrad on & Saptembar 1984 in Sharpevills and Sebokeng and sentenced
to death on 13 Decembar 1985 by the Preatoria Supreme Court. It was alleged
that the defendants had bean tortured during detantion, that stakaments
sxtracted under torture had bean admitted by the ocour: as evidenoe agajinst
tham, that many of tha findings of the Court had been hasgsed on tha eyidapnce of
a single State witness and that most of tha evidence given by the dafendants
tiad been rejectad by the Court.

217, The Special Rapportewr, redquesting intormation on the cases, in
particular on the proceedings of the trials a=s a result of which tha six
Persons ware aesntenced #o death, appealed #o the Governmant on a parely
humanitarian bhagsis to stay their execution.

238. On 16 March 1988, another cable was sant to the Sovernment of

South Africa, again concerning the Sharpsville six, further information hawving
bean recelved to the effect that the s5lx were scheduled to be executed on

18 March 198BS,

23%. The Special Rapportenr reiterated his appeal to stay the execution of the
SiX.

240, Sybsequently, the Special Rapporteur laarned that on 23 November L9838 the
State President had commuted the death Bentencas imposed on the "Shacpevilie
slx" to terms of imprisonment varying from 18 rto 5 years, At the same bime
he commuted tha death sentences imposed on =ix other people, incinding four
white police officers.
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241. On 18 Auguat 1988, a cable waa sent to tha Sovernmant conosrning
Malson Mandela who, according to reports, waa gravely 111. Durimg the
hearings condusted jointly by the Special Rapportenr apd the Ad Boo Working
Group of Experts on scuthern Africa in August 1988, fears were axpressed to
tha Special Bapportaur that Helson Mandela might not be raceiving adequate
madical attention and that his life might be in jaopardy.

242, The Special Rapporbeur, expressiong his concern, appealed to the

Seath African Govermment, on a purely humanitarian basis, to ensure that
Mandela's right to life was protected and that steps were taken B0 provide him
with evary possible medical care and attention,

243, On 2B July 1988, a latter was sent to the Government of Soukh Africa
trangmitting the allegation that during the past year a large number of
perzsang had been killed in viclence in various parts of the country, and in
pacticular as a result of contimving 2onflicts betwean the Inkatha movement
and the supporters of the Upnited Denogratic Fropt (UDF} in Natal. According
to one spource, approximately 500 persons had been killed between the beginning
of 1987 and May 1988, In Jasuary 198E alone, s total of 10B persons wera said
to have been killad, and, according to some reports, the police had failed to
intarvene to prevent killings during vioalent incidents. It was also alleged
that several persons, said to be anti-apartheid activists, ware killed hy
unidentified men. The Special Rapporteur dezscribed, by way of example, the
following cases:

{a} On 26 January 19449 in Boweto, Godfrey Sicelo Dlows was found ghot
dead six days after he had been questioned at the police headguarters in
Johannesburg about a televizion interview in which be reportedly described how
be had besn tortured by the police in detention;

i

{b) On 29 January 1988 in Halmoed near Welcome, Orange Free State,

Linda Brakvis was killed by unidentified men three days after his réelease from
& weeks' detention without charge,

244, In addition, several persons, faid to be membere of The African Hational
Congress of South Africa {ANC) were allegedly killed outside the country by
unidentified men allagad to ba under the control of ehe Government of

South Africa. The following casan ware given ag sxanples:

{a) 1In January 1988 in Manzini, Swaziland, Sipho Hgama was® gshot dead by
a black gunman in a restavcrant;

(b} ©On 23 March 1988, in Maseru, Mazizi Magekeza was shot dead in a
hogpital bed by a gunman who fired through the windows

(c) Om 29 March 1988 in Paris, Dulcie September was shobt dead by
unldentified gunmen.

245. Purthermore, on 28 Macch 1968, in the suburbs of Gakorone, four person=,
three of whom weke said to be nationals of Botswana and one a refuges £rom
Scuch Africa, were allegediy killed in a raid by members of the South Afcican
efence Forces,
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246, On 9 Hovember 1988, ancther letter was sent transmitting the allegation
that the death penalty was sxtensively used agalnst those convicted of
politically related murders of poliveman, black township councillors and
suspactad police informers., Official statistics allegedly showed that the
death sentence was disproportionately imposed on the black population by an
almost enticely white judiciary, Rs of February 19498, 267 persons were sajd
to be under the sentence of death and by 11 June 1988 at least 71 of them had
reportedly been sxecuted. Furthermore, in the case of the conviction of the
Sharpeville six, the Appeal Court judgement, upholding the trial court's
decision, reportedly introduced an interpretation of the legal principle of
conmon purpossa vhich potentially ¢ould spread the net of eriminal liability to
all participants in a demonstration or riot. It was alzo alleged that several
persons were killed in violence in various parts of the country, in particular
in Matal, as a result of continuing conflicts between rival groups in black
tovnships,. In a ngmber o©f incidents, mepbers and supporters of UDF, the
Congress of South African Trade Unions [COSATU) amd the Natal Crganization of
Women (KM were allegedly salected as targets for assault. It was further
alleged that several persons were Killed by members of the police, The
Special Rapporteur described such casea as follows:

fal] On 26 Novenber 1987 in Mamafubado townahip near Petrus Steyn in the
Orange Free State, Josias Tlaki, aged 15, was shot dead at his home by
police, Ib was alleged that he was Killed while police were ordering his
family to vacate the houses

{b} ©On 23 August 1987 in Bononil, Bast Rand, Caiphus Nyoki, a studeni and
TDF member,; was =hot dead by policemen whoe raided his house)

{cl In early August 1966 in Soweto, Clement Gwiji, a ld4-year-old high
achool stuodent, was shot dead by the municipml police. According to the
police statement; the shooting was to disperse the pupils who were throwing
stones at a delivery truck escorted by the police. Eyewiinesses, however,
contasted the police statement;

{d} Om 12 Januwary 1998, Sithembels Zokwe was shot dead by the Transkei
Security Polic¢e in Bubterworth shortly after having baen datained.
Subsequently, two memnberz of the Tranzkel Security Police were reportedly
arrazted and chapged with murder)

(2] ©nh 2 March i%88, in George, Southern Cape, Andile Kobe, from
Sandkraal, died of head injuries caused by severe beatings by police,

247. In both letters, the Special Rapporteur reguested information on the
above-mentioned allegations, and in particulzr on any investigations of the
casez, including auvtopsies, and any measures taken by the authoritiea to bring
those responsikle to juatice and prevenk further occurrence of such deaths.

248. On 30 Decepher 1968, a reply was received from the Governmenkt of
South Africa to the effect that:

{a}] The conflict between Inkatha and UDF continued to be a cause of much
unrest and tragedy in Watal. Since the middle of 1987, this conflict, which
mainly concerned the guestion of superiority and effective control in an araa
which 1s kraditicnally a Zulu stronghold, had sevecely escalated. The area



E/CH.4/19993/25
page 438

had always bmen one with a high crime rate. In the circumstances, the
South hfrican police, alresady stretchad by the prevailing emerqency aituatien,
did their best ko defuse and stabilize the situationg

(b} Godfray Sicelo Dlomo was atrrested on 12 June 1986 with aix othar
youths on the campus of tha Commercial Collags in Sowebo, following an
investigation intoc attempted murder and arson. All six were charged but were
acquitted on 6 January 1987. Dlome again came onder attenktion after the
broadcasting of a CBES documentary in which a certain "Godfray" made some
sensational accusations concerning the detention of children., "Godfrey™ was
identified as Godfrey Dlomo amd on 20 Januvary 1988, he was questioned on his
invelvement in the documantary. He 3aid that he had been invitad to taa by
the Detainess Parant=2 Support Committse (DPSC} where 2 man had asked him to
relate avents surrounding his detention for videstaping. According to Dlomo,
he was instructed to say that he had been assaulted. Godfrey Dlomo then told
pelice that he was afraid of certain members attached to the Azanian People's
Organization (AZAPO) and since hizs Life might be in danger, reguested that he
be taken to Ehokso House, whera the offices of the South African Council of
Churches ware located. He was not seéeen again. On 25 January 1988, his body
was found in Soweko, Ik had three bullet wounds, Investlgations were still
continuing)

{c) ©Gordon Linda Brakvisz, aged 25, was dekained betwean 12 June and
17 Septembar 1987 on suspicion of inciting youbkhs to arson and violence. He
was- alsc sought for acrmed cobbery in which he had allegedly been involved
during NMovember Y986, He wag charged but found not gullity of robbary on
3 Baptamber and raleased on 17 September 1987. His body was found on
29 January 1986. Tt was allaged by witnesses that Brakvis and a friend had
bean attacked by three unknown men, cesulting in Brakvis' death.
Investigations were still conkinuing. Since 1983, Mr., Brakvis had heen
genkanced far various criminal offences and had served an 18-~monkh term for
robbery between December L1985 and June 1l985;

{d} With regard to the other cases, the South African Sovernment
repeatedly denled involvement in the eliminatlon of people abroad, and said
that no evidence linking thosze incidents with the Government had been found,

Brl Lanka

249, On 28 July 1986, a letter was sent to the Government of Srl Lanka
transmitting the allegation that, although the Indo-5ti Lankan agreement had
been concluded on 29 July 1987 t¢ establish peace and a return o norwmalocy in
Sri Lanka, kiliing of unarmed civilians continved in the context of internal
armad goapnflicte. The Special Rapparcteur dascribed, by way of azample, cases
of soch killings ateributed to the Indian Peace-Keeping Forces {IPKF) and the
sri Lankan police as follows:

(a} On 21 October 1987 at the Jaffna Teaching Hospltal, some 100 peraons
were allegedly killed by IBKF scldiers It was alleged that the victims
included three doctors, a number of medical interns, 10 nurses and patisnts)

(] ©On 22 October 1987 ak Aralithurai Jetti, 35 persons were allegedly
killed whan an IPEF helicopter attacked a group of people with rocket mortars;
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{c) ©On 24 Octobar 1947 in Sanguppltti, two wobeh were allegedly killed
by IPKF soldiers after having bheen raped;

id) on 2% October 1487 at Chavakachcheri market, 68 pesrsons were
allegedly killed when an IPKF helicopter attacked a2 large crowl of shoppers)

(e)] On 30 October 1987 at the Hindu Women'a Colleqge, thres children ware
allegedly Kkilled in an IPEP artlllery attack on a refugees camps

{f) On 16 Hovember 1987 in Valvettitural, seven persons, all young
males, were detalned by IPKF soldiers and taken bo the IFEF camp at
VYalvettitural. ©On 17 Hovember 1947, one of the seven, nawed Paramanathan, son
of Faramasamy, died allegedly as a result of torktore. Ono 18 Hovember 1987
another, napmed Baburaj, son of Munugamy, was allegadly shot dead in the grave
which he had been forced to dig at Vallai-Velli along the road Erom
valvertiturai to Jatffna;

{g) On 12 December 1987 at Alaveddy North, Jaffna, three brothers named
Pathmanathan Eirltharan, aged 31, Pathmanathan Muralitharan, aged 21, and
Pathmanathan Balenthiran were detained by IPKF goldiers and tortured,
Pathmanathan Eiritharan was allegedly killed by one of the soldlers with a
bayonet:

ih) On 29 Detcember 1987, Kanagalingam Hathan was detained by IPKF at the
IPKPF camg In Inuvil. His dead body, which was hamded over to his Lamily on
16 January 1938, allegedly bore marks of torture, The death certificate
issued by IPEF gtated that Kanagalingam Wathan, said te be a Diberaklion Tigers
of Tamil Belam (LTTE} militant, died on 16 January 1988 “probably due to
audden cardlo-resplrakory arrest®;

(i) ©On 27 December 1987 in Batticaloa, at least 25 perscons were killed
in a crowded market, allegedly in lndiscriminate shooting by local policemean
and IPEF soldiers, atter an attack by Tamil rebels on three policemen in which
one policeman was killed.

250, In addition, a congiderable number of civilians were allegedly killed by
a Tamil armed opposition group. The following are some of such cases:

{a} On 1 March 1988 in Morawewa, in Trincomalse district, 17 persons, 16
of whom were said to be Sinhalese, were allegedly shot dead in an attack by
Tamil rebels;

{81 ©n 5 March 1988 at Sittaru, in Trincomalee district, 26 civilians on
a trwck were killed when the truck hit a land-mine allegedly set by Tamil
cebels;

(e} On 17 March 1988, near the town of Digawapi in Apparaj diatrice,
15 Sinhaleaa villagers were killed by Tamil raebels.

251. Furthermore, aince July 1987 more than 250 govermment officials and
supporters of the United Mational Pacty, the ruling political party, inclueding
itz chairman, bad allegedly bean killed by a group named Japatha Vimukthi
Peravuna {JVP), wvhich wae sald to be oppozed to the Tpdo-Sri Lankan agreenent
of July 1987,
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252, On 9 Novamber 1988, amother lebter wasa sent to the Government cE

Sril Lanka transmitting the allegation that a number of persons were killed by
the Special Task Force (STF} of the S5ri Lankan army befors the Indo-Sri Lankan
agresment in July 1987 and by IPKP after the agrzement. The victims of such
killings weras said to be Tamil villagers. The Special Rapportaur described,
by way of examsla, seven alleged incidents of sach killings. In addition, the
Special Rappocteur transmitted allegations that, during the past eeveral
monthe, indigcriminate killings had been carrisd oat by the Tamil rebels. One
incident of such klllings was reported to bave occurted cn % Qckober 1988 in
the village of Tlukulama, whare 47 Sinhalags willagers, insloding L2 women and
18 children, were allegedly killed by Tamil rebels.

253, In both letters, the Special Rapporteur requested information on the
allegations, and in particular on any investigations of those cases, ifncluding
autopeisn, and any measures taken by the authorities to brinmg those
responsible to justice and pravent further occurrenca of suwch deaths.

234. On L3 January L38%, the Special Rappocteur met the Permanent
Representative of Sri Lanka ta the United Wations QFEEice at Geneva and
eXplained that the pituation of continuing viclence in tha area where
Incidants of summary or arbitrary axecutions had beaan allaged had hampered
investigationa of the incidents., The violence, pacticularly on the part of
LTTE made agystematic judicial investigationzs of specific alleagations
impracticable currently. However, investigations inte tha Lahugala
{Udumankulam} incident in Amparai district on 19 Fabruary 1986 had baen
completed by the Inspactor~Genaral of Police whe had submitted his report on
tha alleged incident to Ehe High Court which had issued summonsas and the
judi¢ial inguiry was due to commence on 18 January 1989, The Permanent
Rapresantative listed a number of posgitive developments which gave hope that
some of the conditions which had led to the emergence of thosae reports wonld
change for the batter, The developments were staked to be as follows:

{a) Lifting of the emergency with effectk from midnight on
1% Januvarey 1989, In deciding ko Lift the emergancy, the President had taken
into account the improving security situation, which in his opinion "is dwe to
the confidence the masses of this country have placed in themselvez2". As a
result, 500 persons had immediately been releazaed and othars ware axpected to
be relmased in the near futureg

{b} The Government had declared that it would be ready to discuss the
repeal of the Prevention of Terrcorism Act as security conditions ¢continued to
improve, A final decisioh, howevar, would have to await the alsction of the
new Parliament aftar the ganeral alectlonss

{c) Holding of Provincial Council elections in all partz of the izland
was completed on 1% Movember 1988 and had lad to a substantial measure of
administrative devolution. 1In the tamporarily mergad Northern and Eastern
Frovinces, membars of Formar militant groups have bacome members of khe
provincial administration, eschewing vioalancej

{d} Genaral 2lections ware schedulad For 15 Fabruary 1989 and would
provide further opportunities for political participation by all militant
groups which had regorted to violence in Ehe past. The Tamil United
Liberation Front, a Tamil democratic parliamentary parky, had formed a
coalition with the militant groups to conteat the general alactionsy
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(e} The proscription on JVP which had besn opposing the IPEF presence in
Sri Lahka had been 1ifted affording it an opportunity to pacciclpate
dencceatically in the country's political life.

255, The Permanent Representative hoped that, as and vwhen the security
sltuaticn improved, more information on the incidents would be Forthocoming and
in particular that it would be possible b0 conduct proper investigations,

Sudan

256. Om 2B July 19B8, a letter was sent to the Government of Sudan,
transmitting the allegation thak, during the past year, in the internal armed
conflict in the southern part of Sudan, a large numbexr of civilians, mainly
menmbers of the Dinka ethnic group; had been killed by government forces or
militias recruwited by those forces. The following three incidents were giwven
as examplez of alleged killings:

(a) ©n 27728 March X987 in Diein, Darfur Province, mcre than
1,000 civilians were allegedly kilied by the Rizeigat militias;

{b] ©On 11 and 12 Aggusat 1987 in Wau, at least 600, possibkly
2,000 civilians, were allegedly killed by the security forces)

(¢} At the beginning of September 1987 in the town of Suk Jou, hundreds
of civilians ware allegedly killed by the security fcorces and militia memkers.

25%. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the alleged occurrence of
summary or arbitrary executions, and in particular onh any investigations of
those cases and the measures taken by the agthorities to bring those
responsible to Justice apd prevent further occurrance of such deaths,

258. At the time of preparation of the present report 7m0 reply had been
received Erom the Government of Sudan,

Sur iname

259, On 15 Pecember 1988, a cable was gfent to the Goverament of Suriname
concerning the arrest and detention of Stanley Rensch, whom the

Epecial Rapporteur had met during his visit Lo Suriname in Auguskt 1967,
According to Llnformation received, Stanley Rensch was arreskted on

10 December 1988 by tha Military Police on his peturp to Suriname from abroad.

260. The Special Rapporteur, expressing his concern about the arrest and
requesting information in particular on the charges brought againat Sktanhley
Rensch, appealad to the Govermment to ensure that all legal guarantees and
human cighta, including the right to lifs, were reapected in his cana.

' 261. Subzeguently the Special Rapporteur learned that Stanley Rensch had been
releasad on 21 December 1988,

262, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
raceived from the Govarnment of Surinamsz.,
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Syrian Arab Repuablic

263. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of the Syrian Arab
Repuklic, transmitting allegations oF deaths in deteantion. The Special
Rapportaeur described, by way of example, three such cazes as follows:

{a} On 14 Hovember 1987 in Saidnaya prison near Dimashg {Damascus),
Ihzan 'Jzzo was said to have died as a result of korbture and denial of medical
traatmaent i

ib) In late December 1987 or sarly Januvacy L1388 at Fara' Falastin in
Damascus, Muohammaad al-"hArcad died in circumstances zimilar to those described
aboye 7

(c) Bekween 20 and 22 April 1988 at Para al-Tahgig al-tAskari in Dimashg
({Damascus}, 'Abd al-Razzag Abazid alsc died as a result of torture during
intarrogation,

264, The Special Rapporteur reguested information on bthe above-mentioned
allegation, armd in particular on any investigationes of those cagez, incloding
zukopsies, and any measures taken by the authocrities te bring those
respongible to justice and prevent further ooccurrence of such deaths.

265. On 9 tovember 1988, ancther letkter was sent bto kthe Government of Lhe
Syrian Arab Republic =oncecrning the allegaticn that, daring the past several
years, in Tadmur (Palmyra) prison, A numbar of priscners had been executad
immediately after a summary trisl, in which the accuszed ware not givan the
right to lagal Jafence nor the right to appeal. Twenty—-nine names of
prisoners allegedly executed in Tadmur prison were given.

26%. The Special Rapporteur pequestad informatioh oh those cases.

287, On 7 Beptember L3988, a reply wasz received from tha Government of the
Syrian Arab Republic concerning ah alleged ihcident of killing of civilians in
Tripoli, Lebanon, on 20 Degembeyr 1986, by Syvrian troops and an alleged death
in custody on 1 May 1986, which were described in the Spesial Rapporteur's
last report {E/CN.$/1988/22, para. 165}. With regard to the incident in
Tripoli, the reply stated that the Syrian pressace had bean established at the
request of the legitimate Lebanese anthorities, with a view to halting the
internecine fighting, helping the legitimate anthorities to re—establish
gecurity and stability throughout the couantry and endeavouring to achleva
national reconciliation among the Lebanes=e in order to proteck Lebanon's
anity, independance ard zovereignty. With rcegard to the alleqged death in
custedy, it was stated that the ¢laim that a personh had died in May 1986 as a
result of torkture was totally uwnfounded.

268, Un 21 December 1983, a reply was recelved from the Government ko the
Spacial Rapporteur's letters of 2B July and 3 Hovember L9288, referring ko its
nota of 16 December 1988 to the Centre for Huyman Rights and attachmenks
thereto. The note stated that the documents tranamitted to khe Government
from the Centre for Human Rights contained various allegations concerning the
human rights sitoation in the Syrian Arab Republic and the methods employed by
irs mecurity agencies, as well as a list of detfainaes. The nocte wWas
accompanied by eight anmnexes Listing the acts of terrocism, sabotage and
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assasaination perpetrated by the persons named in the above-menticned
documents and it was stated that those annexes alec showed the errcrs and
fallacicua allegations contained in those documents as well as the terrorist
and crimipal nature of the detainees, It waa forther stated that the
information contalned in the documents was totally unfounded and was
propagated by terrorist or extremist groups apd social ourcasts.,

Thailand

269, On 9 Movenber 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Thailand
tran=mitting the allegation that, during the pericd from July to October 1987,
five Kampuchean refugees had allegedly been killed in a summary or acbitrary
mannet by members of Thai willtary or paramilitary forces operating along the
Thaji-Kampuchean border., The Special Rapporteur described four allegqed
incidents as followe;

{a) In July 1937, two Rampuchaan nationals, a pregnant woman and her
handicapped husband, were taken into custody and killed by a eoldier of kthe
Thai Brmy"s Task Force 80, as a punishment for cellecting firewood outside
Site ? refuges encawmpmant in PFrachin Buri Province:

{by On 6 huguszt 1987, a EKampuchean waz shot dead aftar having been
arrested 2 kwm from the Site B border camp in Surin Provinoe, near Ban Ehot
village;

{r} ©On 9 Ruqust X987, a RKampuchean was arrested by militis forees 5 km
from 2ite B and near Ban Cham village and was shot dead after =zevere beatings;

{d} On 18 October 1987, a Kampuchean was killed by Thai paramilitarcy
Village Defence Voluntesrs 1 km north of Site B,

270. Tha Special Rapporteur requested information on tha above-mentionad
allegations, and in particular on any investigation=s of those cases and any
measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to justice and
prevant further occurcence of such deaths.

271. At the time of preparation of the present peport no reply had been
raceived from the Government of Thailand,

Oganda

272. On 15 December 19%BH, a letter was sent to the Govarnment of Uganda
concarning the allagation that, in late October and November 1983, in

Gulu District in northern Uganda where groups opposing the Government have
been active, a number of villagers were deliberately burped to death in their
hutes by govarnment forces doring anti-rebel operations. The Special
Rapporteur wenticned five families allegedly killed by government forces.,

273, The Speclal Rapportenr regquested information on the alleged killings and
in particular on any inveatigations of those cases and any measure=s taken by
the authoritias to bring those regponsible tn justice and prevent further
occurrance of such deaths.
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2T4. Bubeequently, information was recelved in connection with the
above-mentioned allegaticon toe the affect that the Major-8eneral, comanding
the Hational Reslstance army {MRA) had reportedly anncunced the establishwment
of an inquiry intoe reporte of WRR Killings of civilians in the course of
counter-insurgency operations in northern tUganda.

275, The Special Rapporteur acknowledges that since his letter was sent to the
Government on 15 December 1988, it might not have had enough Eime to reply
hefore preparation of the precant teport.

Inited Eingdom of Sreak Britain and Horthern Ireland

276, On 28 July 1988, a letter was sant to the Government of the

United Eingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland concerning the allegation
that, on & March 19%BB in Gibraltar, three persons gaid to be members of the
Irish Republican Army (IBR), Mairesd Farrell, Danie]l MoCann and Sean Savage,
were shot fead by members of the Special Air Service (SAS). Tt was reportad
that, according bto eye-witnessesz, the three persons were shot while having
affered no rezistance when confronted by members of SAS, and that they were
cepeatedly shot when lying wounded.

277. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the above-mentloned
allagation, and in particular on any investigations of thoze cases, including
autopsies, and any meoasures taken by the authorities to hring thosge
responiible to justice and prevent further occurrance of such deakha.

278. On % Novembar 19688, a reply was received from the Government of the
Onited Kingdewn, skating that the iacptest in Gibraltar into the deaths of tha
rhres IRA members had been ppened on 6 September and congluded on

30 Septembar 1988, OUnder the direction of the Gijbraltar Coroner,

Felix Pizzarelleo, the ll-man jury had considered avidence from =some

68 witnhesses and had decided, by a 9 to 2 majority in esach case, that tha
three had been killed lawfully. The two approprizte prosecutional
authorities, the Gibraltar Attorney-General and the Director of Army Legal
Sarvices, had received statements taking during the police investigations and,
following reporta of the ingueat from their reprasentatives who had been
present throughoekt, they had each =zeparately and independently conclofed kthat
there were no grounds for prosecution, It was also stated that the Gibraltar
judiclary was totally independent of, and separate from, the administration.

United Statez of Americs

279. On 30 Mzrch 1938, a cable was sent toc the Government of the nited States
of America concerning a case of imminent executicon. 2According to information
recelved a person named John Selvage, whoe was convicted of murder and
sentenced to death in February 1%80, was schedaled to bhe execnted in Texas on
30 March 1988, It waz allsged that the Jjury at kthis trial had not been
informed of the fact that Selvage had a3 history of mental fllness dating back
te 1970 and that he was later evaluated as belng "psychotic”.

280. Tha Special Rapporteur, reguesting information on the above-mentioned
case, In particular con his mental state as examined by a psychiatrcist,
appealed to the Government, on purely humanitarian grounds, for a stay of
execution until the allegations mentioned above had been clerified.
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2B1. Om 16 May 1988, a reply was received from the Government of the

United States of America, stating that John Selvage's execution, scheduled for
10 March 1988, had been postponed by the United States Supreme Court pending
consideration of a writ of certlorari. According to the reply, John Selvage,
wha was convicted in 1979 for capital murder and aggravated robbery, was '
sentenced to death in 1980 and his sentence was confirmed in 16834 by the

Texas Court of Rppeal. In 1965, the District Court of the Southern Disteict
of Texas, after initially ordering a stay of execuotion, had denied

Mr. Selvage's first petition for habeas corpus to overturn his sentence and
the United Statez Fifth Circnit Coourt had confirmed that decision in 1967. On
3 March 1988, the District Court had temporarily granted a second writ for a
atay of execution, hot the Fifth Circult Court had reversed that decision on
28 March 1%28 on the ground that the case on which the District Court had
relied in granting the stay had been dizmizsed. As stated above, on

29 March 1948, the Unlted States Supreme Court had granted a stay of execution
pending its deci=ion on whether to accept Mr. Selvage's case on appeal.

2B2, According to the reply, at the tine of his arrest, Selvage was not being
treated for any psychological discorder amd his attorneye, after conducting
investigations into SBelvage's psychological condition, had not put forward
any defence based on his psychological state or challenged hils competence to
stand trisal. WYeverthelass, in February 1988, after Selvage had for the first
time szought a stay of execution based in part on the izsue of his mental
competence, the 230th District Court of Harris County, Texas, had ordered a
psychiatrist and a clinical psychologist to conduct thorough psychological
czaminaticns of Selvage and their reports had both concluded that, despite
some evidence of psychosis, Selvage was competent to be execurad under

the standards established by the United States Supreme Court in

Pord v, Wainwright, 477 US 3993 91 L.ED.2D 3353 106 5.Ct. 2595 (1986].

283. Together with the reply, the Special Rapporteur received copies of the
decrision by the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuilt on

28 March 1%E5, the decision by the United States Supreme Court in

Ford v. Wainwright and the reports by Dr. John D, Nottingham, Jr., a
peychlatrist and Dr. Jercme B. Brown, a clinical psychologist.

Viet Ham

234, On 18 October 1388, a cable was zent to the Government of Viet Ham
concerning the alieged imminent execution of two Buddhist monks and a layman.
According toc information received, Pham Van Thuong, alse Known ag Thich Tue 8y
and L= Manh That, also knewn as Thich Tri Sieu, were reportedly sentenced to
death on 8 October 1988 and Tran Van Luong on 22 Saptember 1%38 by the
People's Tribunal in Ho Chi Minh City. It was alleged that the thres,
arrested in April 1984 and detalned at Phan Dang Luu prison, had suffered
i1l1=treatment and torture and that the trial as a result of which the thraes
were sentefted to death had not guaranteed the safeguards dezigned to protect
the rights of the defapdant, including the right to have lagal aasistance.

285, The Spacial Rapporteur, exprassing hia comcern at the allegation of the
absence of safegquards intended to enaure the bhasic rights of the defendant,
requested information on the above-nentiored cases, in particular on the legal
provisiona and procedures under which the threes might have been charged and
tried.
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286, On & January 1989, a reply was received from the Government of Viet Nam
stating that Pham ¥an Thuong, one of the leadsrs of an anti-State organization
callad the "Free Viet Nam Force™ and having close ties with ancther anti=Stats
organization, had participated In subversive activities with a wiew tao
overthrowing the Government aml that Le Manb That had also participated in the
subversive activitlea of the same anti-State organizations. A¢cording to the
reply, the two accusad ware santenced to death on A0 September 1958 by the
Oourk of Ficst Instance in Ho Chi Minh City For their attenpt to overthrow the
Government, in acoordance with article 73 of the Viatnamese Pepal Code.
Subaeguently, by a decision of the Court of Appeals in Ho Chi Minb Clty on

15 Havembsr 1988; the death sentences were commuted to 20 years®

imprisonment., With regard to Tran ¥an Lucng, it was further stated that,
being one of the leaders of anti-State organizations called the “Truong Son
Divisicon” and the "Popular Front for the Restoration of the Homeland", and
being also "President” and “Prime Minizter® of the "Volonteer Forces for the
Regtaration of the Homeland in the Interior of the Coantry"™ and the "Natlonal
League of Resistance for the Restoratiom of the Homeland of Viet Ram®™, he had
pacticipated in swbversive activities in crder to overthrow the Government,
ABfter hiz= arcest on % December 1985 and his trial on 23 September 1388 Ly the
Court of First Inatance, he had besn sentented to death in accordance with
article 73 of the Penal Code. His case would be reviewed by the Court of
apperals in Ho Chi Minh City in doe course,

Yemen

287, On 9 Hovember 1988, a luatter was sent to the Government of Yemen
transmitting an allagation that, during the past ssaveral ysars, somne
250 persons had allegedly been assassinated.

289, The Special Rapporteor described two examples of such alleged
azsassinations as Follows:

fa) On 28 December 1987, Abhdo Saleh Ghanem, Al Ben Alis Ghurhani and
Ahmed Ben Ahmed Chouthabi, said to have been involyved with the Hational
Opposition Front, were assassinated by agyents of the securitly services;

{b} In Januvary 1988, Sheikh Ahmed Basaer Al-Thahab of the faifa region
was asgasainated.

28%, The Special Rapporteur requested information on the above-mentioned
allegations, and in particular on any ihvestigations of those cases and any
measures taken by the authorities ko bring thase reaponsible to justice and
pravent further occcurrence of such deaths.

280, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
received Ifrom the Govermment of Yemen.
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Zaire

291, On 28 July Y988, a letter was sent to the Government of Zaire
transmitting the allagation,that cn 13 Novembexy 1987, in Beni, three persons,
arceated on their teturn from a wisit to Uganda, were allegedly execnted at
Kibwe on the road from Rasemire tc Kagumba. The three weie said to be
Fitamuriko from Earoroma willage, Muhindoe from Museva willage and Viahtereho
from Eilindera village.

292, The Special Rapporteur requested information on the alleged occurrence of
summary or arbitrary executions and in particular eon any Investigations of
those ¢ases, including auvtopaies, and any measures taken by the authorities to
hring theee regponsible to justisze and prevent further oceourtence of such
deaths,

233, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
recaived from the Goverpment of Zaire.
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III. AHALYSIS OF THE PHEHOMENON

A, Remedial andfor preventive measures For the protechtion -
of the right to iife: international standards

294, In hie last report (E/0M,4/1988/22) the Sweclial Rappocteur describ=d the
hackground ard development oF the idea of establishing international standarda
designed to prevent the occurrence of summary or arkitrary executions and to
angire proper investigations of all dearhs in suspicious circumstances. He
also described the efforts and co-operaticon of various organizations and
groups. He now considers that it has been clearly understood and widely
ascepted that there is an urgent need to develop such standards,

285, At jty tenth seszion hald in Vienna from 22 to 31 Aoguet 1988, tha
Committes on Crime Prevention and Contral, based on Boonomic and Social
Council resoution 1986/10, section VI, decided to recommend ko the Boonomic
and Sogial Council the adoption of draft reszolution ¥, entitled "Bffective
prevention and investigakion of extra-lsgal arbhiktrary and summary
executions". The text of the draft reszelution iz found in the report of the
Committes on Crime Prevention and Contral (E/L98B/17: E/AC.S5T/L19BBSLTY .,

296, During the process of preparation for the Committee's tenth session, the
Special Rapporteur was consulted apnd ¢lose co-gperation was maintained between
the Centre for Human Rightes and the Crime Pravention and Criminal Justice
Branch of the Centre for Social Development and Hoemanitacian Affairs.

297, The annex to the draft resclubion, which seks oubk 20 draft principlex on
the effective prevention and Investigation of extra-~legal, arbiteary and
gummary executions, consists of three parts on prevention, investigation and
legal proceedinga. In the part on prevention, the prohibition of all
extra-legal, arbitrary and summary execukions iz elaborated in eight
principles, prescribing legal, adminiztrative and organizational measures to
be taken by Governments. 1In khe part on investigation, nine principles dzal
with warijious elements of a thorough, prompt and impartial investigation,
including an adeguate autopsy, as well as related elements, such as tha
protection of complainants, witnesses, investigators and their familias and
the puklication of the findings. The remaining three pripociples, in the part
on lagal proceedings are devobed to the bringing to justice of those
identified as havwing been involved in extra-legal, arbitrary and sommaty
executions, the fact that a superior's order may not be invoked to justify
pacticipation in extra-legal, arbitrary or summary executions, the prohibition
of hlasnkat immmity from prosecution for any person allagedly invalved in
extra-lagal, arbitrary or 2ommary executions, and f£airv and adeguats
compansation to the families and dependants of victims,

298. The Special Rapporteur was gratified by the ocukcome of the concerted
efforts made by various organs of the United Wations and other international
organizationg. He iz alss pleased ko ge&, In the annex to the above-mentioned
draft resnlution, all the elamants 2 which ba refareced in his last report
(E/CN.4/1988/22, para. 194) as a minimum in interpational standards concerning
sumERTY Or arkitrary executions. The principles embodying these elemenks and
elahorated in the annex to the dratt resolution are explained in sufficient
detail and clarity. The Special Rapportear hopes thatr the draft resolution
will be unanimously adopted in the forthcoming session of the Economic and
Social Council.
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B, Co-ordination and co=onmeration of mechaniams

Z99. In the preceding paragraphs, the Spacial Papporteur referred to the
co-ordinated efforts and effective co-operation with regard to the
aztablishment of standarde for the préevention of aanmary or arbitrary
executions and for proper investigations intc deaths in guapicicua
clrocupatances. Similar co-ordination apd ¢co-cperation are yet to ba explored
in tha following three arsas.

1. Thematic Speclal Rapporteurs

300. The Specizl Rapporteur haza saxanined the reports sublkitted. te the
Commission on Human Rights in paat years by the Spacial Rapporteur on the
aquestion of tortura and the Working Group on Enforced or Involuntcary
Disappearances and has noted that certain parts of the mandatas of the
thematic Spacial Rapporteurs and the Working Grogp overlap. In fact, a
considerable numbar of cases wera concurrantly brought to the attantion of the
Special Rapporteurs and the Working Group, zimge they contained elements which
wera ralevant to all three wmandates. An example of such cases would be one in
which a perszon is abdogtad, torbtopred in detention and then found dead, tha
thres phenomena namaly, anforced or involuntacy disappearance, tocture and
smmbary of arbitrary exacobion, beind present in one case.

301. The Special Rapporteur would simply like to state at the prasent stage
that he i3 willing to explors the posaibility of co-operation among the thrae
thematic mandates, reaching bevyond a simple exchange of information on allaged
cases rglevant o the mandates concerned. In this respect, he would welooms
any suggestions of pLoposals.

2. Methods of implementation

302, As described in chapter I, the mandate of the Special RBapporteur hag been
implemented by the Following action:

(a) Inguliries concerning allegations of sumBary of arkitracy executions,
which are comnunicated to the Governments concerned, requesting information,
in pacticular on official investigationz, trial procesdings, prosecution and
punichment of those responsiblz and measures taken to prevent summary or
arbitrary execotions;

(b) Trgent appeals fo the Governments concerned regarding alleaged caszes
of imminent or threateped sxecotion which appear prima facie relavant ta his
mardate, appealing to the Government to ensure that the right to 1life of the
individual ia protectad and regquesting information on the allaged caseg and in
certain cases, appealing, on humanitarian grounds, for a stay of exscutiony

{c) On—gite visite to the countriss concerned upon tha invitation of the
Govatrment, snabling the Special Rapporteur to inform himself of particular
aituations, cases or relesvant background material;z

{4} M=atings with Governient reprasentativas for consultation in
fonnectjon with the allagad stihmary or arbitrary execotions in their couptry.
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303, It is c¢lear that, fn all four types of action taken by the Special
Rappor teur, oco-operation by the Governments conceined 1s vital for the
effsotive ipplapantaticon of tha Spacial Rapporteur's mandate. To that end,
the Eoonomic and Social Coundil, in paragraph 12 of regolotion 1988738,

"Orges all Governments, in particular those that have consistently
not reaponded to communications transmitted to them by the Special
Rappoftenr, amd all others concernsed, to co—operate with apd assist the
Special Rapporteuar 3G that he may carlfy out his mandate effectively”.

304. In this connection, an examination of the Special Rapporteur's =even
reparts to the Commission on Human Rights gives scaw iadication of the
gituatien., The following table shows the number of Governments to which
allegations of sumnary or arbitrarv executions were addresaed and from which
replieg were received from 1982 ro 19489,

Numizer of Goverpments to which allegations ware addressed
and from which replies were received

1952-1989
o P e e P —— T
Repor ks Humber of Replies Hunber of Replies :
DOVEr NEenLEs received Governpenks recejved
to which letters tao which
containing Appaals ware
allegationz sent
weIe Ient
B/CH. 4/1983/13 40 13
E/CN, 471964/ 29 i0 as 5 af 9 9
BfCH,. 4719852717 24 LS 6 8/ 13 2
E/CR. 471986,/ 21
Concerning 1984
alleqations 16 11
Concerning 1985 )
allegations 15 12 14 5
ESCH. 471987 /720 ' Z1 13 11 3
BfCH, 471988722 T 25 10 11 4
E/CH. 471989725 36 13 23 5

af  Government® not named in the report.

bf Of which 21 Governments wers nat named in the report.
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305. Furthermore, the Bpecial Rapportanr, reviewing his past activities, would
like to foous on the Ipllowing two points In order to enhance the effective
implementation of his mandate:

{a) 'The poszibility of more op-zite vigits szhould be explored,
aspacially to the countries whare sarious allegations of summary or arbikrary
execution® have been made, in order that the Special Rapporteur may bettar
inform himself of the sitwation or incidents 5o as t¢ be bekter placed bo make
recomendationay

(b} The possibility of graater co-operation with other international
organizations, whether governmental or non—-governmental, should be conzidered,
for example, with a view to making a team of forensic medical experts
available to accompany and assist the Special Rapporteur during hie visits to
conntries in order to examine allegationsz of summary or arkhitrary executions,

1. visit in situ, advisory services and technical assistance

306, The Commission on Human Rights, in ite resclution 1988/54, entitled
*advisory servicea in the field of human rights™, requested ita apegial
rapporteurs and representatives, as wall as the Working Group on Enforced ar
Involuntary DMsappearances, "to include in their recommendations; whenever
appropriate, proposals for gpecific projects to be realiged under the
progranme of advisory secvices® [para. 9},

307. Of those recommendatlons and proposalg which the Special Rapporteur on
stmary or arbltrary execptions made in his past raports, twe are relevant to
the programne of advisory services,

308, One concerns the Special Rapporteur's proposal of a general nature. In
hiz laat report {(E/CH.4/1988/22, para, 207 (a)) he recommendad that “as a
mattar of urgency, training programmes should be organized with a view to
training or educating law enforcenent offlcers in human righte issues
connected with their work”. For thls purpose he proposed rthat regional
seminars and workshops should be organized. He has singe learned that such
seminare and workshops are organized by reglonal inatitutes in co-operation
with the Crime Preventicon and Criminal Justice Branth of the Centre for Social
Development and Humanitarian Arffairs,

an9, The other concerns specific countries, namely Ugands {E/CNH.4/71987720,
annex IIL] and Suriname (E/CN.4/1988/22, annex). In both cases, the Special
Rapporteur, after having visited the countries within the contaxt of hie
mandate and informed himself in situ of the situations concerned, identified
the questiona and jissues involved. The recommendationz and proposals made= for
thase countcies were the ootcome of hig visit in situ,

310, In order to implement these proposals, co-operation and co=crdination
between Governments and United Watlons offices would be indizpensable. The
S8pecial Rapporteur considers that in certain cases his experience in the
gpecific country might be of =2ome help in formulating a projact in or for the
countty camcerned.



E/CN.4/1989/25
page 62

IV, CONCLUSEONS AND RECOMMENDATICHS

31l. Ax meptioned in previous reports, hundreds of thousands of people have
died in =zituatiaons of inrernational and internal armed confliects. In 1888,
however, a number of positive initiativas were taken in various international
conflicts leading to the creacton of an atmosphare in which sitvations
conducive to SUtghary o arbitrary executions can he reducted. It is5 very much
hoped that these afforts will give risze to definitive solutions 5o that
international peace arnd security can be achieved, It iz only in an atmosphera
of peace that human rights, and in partioular the right to life, can be
guarantesd amd that the netional institutiong egtabiished to protect homan
rights and anable persong to anjoy them can be strengthened and operate
affectivaly. Therafore the 2fforcs under way o resolve these conflicts are
to be welcomed.

312. Unfortunately, the {nitlacives taken in dealing with international
confiict areas have nok g0 far been matched bw similar initiatives to resolve
internzl armed conflicts o tensions. Conzeguently, thousands of lives =till
continie to be lost by civillans in such conflicts., 1In the period upnder
review, there has been & 1ot of indiscriminakte killing of unacrmed civilians on
the part of governmental forces. The groups opposing Governments have also
hean guiley of this practice. In £act, in Scme gituations where Governmenkts
hawve genuinaly tried to addreas the gelevances giving rise to such groupa and
have ktrizd ko involve alil persons in the democratic procass, such groups have
tried to sabotage thoss efforts and in 30 doding have wantonly killed people.

313, It is a matter of regret that, in some areas where peace pegotiations
have ended international armed conflict, reports are emerging which imdicate
that the governmental instruments of power have turned from the snemy across
the border to civilians within the country, with the result thak there has
baen a very noticeable lporease In summary or acbltrary exegutions by the
Governments concerned of thelr own civillana. In some cases, according to the
allegations made, persosns who had already besh tried, without the proper
procedural safequards, and sentenced to a term of imprisonment have been
executed without further due process of the law or trial.

314. In the pericd under review, the Special Rapparteur has recelived more
reports than at any time during the period of his mandate, alleging increaszed
uysa of chemical weapon=. In at least three areas, there were allegations that
chemdlcal weapons had been uged and that they had resulted in thousands of
deaths. In this regard, the Special Rapporteur waelcomes the determination of
the international community as raflected in the Final Declaration of the
represantatives of States participating in the Conference= on khe Prohibition
of Chemical Weapons which met in Paris £rom 7 to 11 Japuary 1989 whan they
resolved to prevenkt any cecourse to chemical weapons by complekely eliminating
tham, and aclemnly afficmed their commiement not t0o use chemical weaponz and
condemned such uae,

315. A djaturbing feature of the period under review is the incceasing pumber
of allegations which the Special Rapporkeuwr has received to the effect thatc
thouszands of people have lost thelr lives at the handzs of police or other law
aenforcamant officials in demonstrationa. It would appear bthat the law
enforcement cfficials 4id nobt act with the reatraint reguired in asuch cases
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according to the Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials. The Special
Rapporteur would therefors strongly reiterate the recommendation he made in
his last report that the United Hationz Centre for Human Rights should
organize seminars ot workshop=s for law enforcement officials to train them and
Irnculcate fin them the principle that khey should sarry out their work with due
respect for the heman rights of the individual, and to familiarize them with
varfous internaticnzl human rights instouments which are directly related o
their work. There is also room for bilateral and mpitilateral technical
assistanca in thig regard.

Aleé. One of the problematic iszues that hag faced the Special Rapporteur is
how to determine whether a "deakth sgquad®™ or an extresme right- or left—wing
group which ia responsible for killing pecple is acking independéntly or with
tha support, tolerance, connivance or sncouragemant of tha Government. 1In
scme counkrles it iz z2lleged that, althoush such gqroups are ostensibly
independent, they are sponscred by the Government or the Govarpment tolerates
them or in Eact they include police and military personnel in plain clothes
and under orders from their superiors, The Goverpnmants have said that soch
groups act independently of them, The Special Rapporteur would welcome the
Comelasion's viewz on how to deal with this problem. Whatever the position,
it is the primary duty and responsibility of the Government to ensure that the
right to life ia guaranteed and protected from anyone who attempts to violate
it.



